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AIDS

Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome

ARC

Audit and Risk Committee

ART

Antiretroviral Treatment

ARV

Antiretroviral

CCM

Country Co-ordinating Mechanism

CCMA

Commission for Conciliation, Mediation and Arbitration

CDC

Centres for Disease Control

CEO

Chief Executive Officer

CFO

Chief Financial Officer

CSF

Civil Society Forum

DAC

District AIDS Council

DFID

Department for International Development (UK)

DREAMS

Determined, Resilient, AIDS-free, Mentored and Safe Initiative

FDC

Fixed dose combination

FHI

Family Health International

FOAs

Funding Opportunity Announcements

GCSS

Government and Civil Society Support

GDP

Gross Domestic Product

GF

Global Fund

GIZ

Deutsche Gesellschaft für Internationale Zusammenarbeit GmbH
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HCT

HIV Counselling and Testing

PEPFAR

United States President’s Emergency Plan for AIDS Relief

HIV

Human Immunodeficiency Virus

PFIP

Partnership Framework Implementation Plan

IMC

Inter-Ministerial Committee

PFMA

Public Finance Management Act

IOM

International Organization for Migration

PMTCT

Prevention of Mother to Child Transmission

LAC

Local AIDS Councils

PRs

Principal Recipients

LASA

Legal Aid SA

PRC

Programme Review Committee

LGBTI

Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender and Intersex

PWID

People Who Inject Drugs

M&E

Monitoring and Evaluation

SANAC

South African National AIDS Council

MDR TB

Multi Drug Resistant TB
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MEC

Member of the Executive Council

SANAC
Trust

MMC

Medical Male Circumcision

SARS

South African Revenue Service

MSM

Men who have Sex with Men

SCM

Supply Chain Management

NDoH

National Department of Health

STIs

Sexual Transmitted Infections

NGO

Non-Governmental Organisation

TB

Tuberculosis

NSP

National Strategic Plan for HIV, STIs and TB

TTT

Technical Task Team

NSP FC

National Strategic Plan Financing Committee

UIF

Unemployment Insurance Fund

OIG

Office of the Inspector General

UN

United Nations

PBO

Public Benefit Organisation

UNAIDS

United Nations Joint Programme on HIV/AIDS

PCAs

Provincial Councils on AIDS

USAID

United States Agency for International Development

XDR TB

Extensively drug-resistant TB
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PART A:
GENERAL INFORMATION

Strategic Overview

There are 7.03 million people
living with HIV in South Africa,
making it the single biggest
cause of premature death and
disability in the country. An
estimated 150341 people died
from HIV in 2015.

The WHO estimates that there were 72 000
deaths in People Living with HIV (PLHIV)
in 2014 in which the fatal event was TB.
HIV mortality over the last two decades
has generated an estimated 3.1 million
orphans, placing huge burdens on families,
communities and the social safety net. Two
decades ago, the transmission of HIV from
mother to child in pregnancy caused high
HIV prevalence in children, resulting in very
high child mortality rates. The adult and
paediatric epidemics have caused strain on
the health and social services.
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HIV has affected every single sector of the social and
economic life of the country including education,
social services, and various economic sectors notably
mining, agriculture and road freight. In 2001 the
Bureau for Economic Research estimated that the HIV
epidemic reduced GDP growth by 0.5% on average for
the period 2002 to 2015.

that there were 335 000 new infections in 2014.
The Thembisa model estimates that there were 270
000 new infections in 2015. Unless we are able to
control new infections through effective prevention
programmes, the bill for ART will continue to rise
exponentially bringing into serious question the long
term sustainability of treatment.

The provision of antiretroviral treatment to an
estimated 3.4 million adults and children, and the
reduction of transmission in pregnancy by almost
90%, have stemmed the tide of rising infection rates.

South Africa needs to make significant investments
in HIV prevention. At the same time there is a new
‘treat all’ policy announced by the Minister of Health
effective 1 September 2016, following the new WHO
Antiretroviral Treatment Guidelines published at the
end of 2015. This will result in at least a doubling of the
number of PLHIV needing treatment.

The impact of Antiretroviral Treatment (ART) and
the Prevention of Mother to Child Transmission
(PMTCT) is reflected in declines in mortality and
an increase in life expectancy from:

2005

53.8

YEARS

2015

62.1

YEARS

Adult mortality has declined by more than 50% since
its peak in 2003 and 2004. Child and infant mortality
have declined by 38% and 30% respectively in the
period 2005 to 2015.
Though there has been a great deal of progress, we
are not seeing the declines in new infections that
are needed to burn out the epidemic by 2030, as
proposed by the National Development Plan (NDP)
and the new Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs).
In 2012 the Human Science Research Council (HSRC)
household survey estimated that there were 469 000
new infections in persons aged 2 years and older. This
is reflected in the overall increase in prevalence from
10.6% in 2008 to 12.2% in 2012. UNAIDS estimates

We will need to balance our investments between
prevention and treatment to find the optimal mix, given
our limited resources. We estimate that the country
currently spends approximately R23 billion on HIV and
TB. How much more money will we need to invest and
what is the optimal mix of interventions to prioritise?
This is the question that we are trying to answer
through the current planning taking place within
the South African government and inside SANAC.
We are fortunate to have well developed modelling
instruments and a well-stocked repository of data
to answer these questions. The recently completed
Investment Case exercise has contributed greatly to
better understanding the long-run costs especially in
respect of ART.
Sound planning, a careful evidence-based selection of
priorities optimally mixing prevention and treatment
interventions, and carefully monitoring the epidemic
and our response, are critical to a successful response.
Costing our intervention choices and analysing them
over the short and long term are also essential at
national and provincial levels. Being smart about
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fundraising from donors will yield significant financial
contributions to the South African response.

Finding efficiencies at the technical design
level as well as allocative efficiency of
domestic and donor funds is essential given
the constrained fiscal environment.
Given
appropriate
resources
and
sufficient
responsibility, the Trust should increase its
contribution to planning, prioritisation and finding the
optimal mix of prevention and treatment interventions
in consultation with government and civil society
and private sector stakeholders. The Trust now has
the capacity to effectively monitor and evaluate
the progress of implementation of the AIDS and TB
response through a monitoring and evaluation team,
and to estimate expenditure and resource needs over
the medium to long term. It needs to strengthen its
work in these areas.
The Trust is also responsible for donor coordination
and directly manages the country’s Global Fund
account and is involved in the co-management of all
PEPFAR prevention funds (United States President’s
Emergency Plan for AIDS Relief), especially the
DREAMS project (estimated at US$67 million for the
two-year period commencing 1 October 2015).
The current situation is that the SANAC Trust is run on
a shoe-string budget. The Trust is allocated core funds
from the NDoH. The Trust has been able to raise donor
funds to supplement its core income. Discussions
are under way with the Department of Health and the
Treasury about the Trust receiving funds from multiple
national government departments, given the multisector nature of the work of the Trust.
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Now that all the governance, financial
management and legal registration issues
have been addressed and the Trust has
received an unqualified audit opinion (the
fourth in as many consecutive years) and has
a management team and staff in place, it is
much better positioned to fulfil its mandate in
respect of the functions outlined below.

Vision
To have a South Africa free from the burden of HIV, TB
and Sexually Transmitted Infections (STIs).

MISsion
To build a credible Secretariat that leads the effective
implementation of the National Strategic Plan (NSP)
through superb execution and coordination of
government, civil society and the private sector.
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Legislative and Other Mandates
Overarching Mandate
South African National AIDS Council Trust Deed
• The Trust Deed states the objects of the Trust.
National Strategic Plan for HIV, STIs and TB
• T
 he object of the Trust stipulates that the overall
mandate of the Trust is to coordinate and support
the implementation of the NSP.

Other legislative, functional and
policy mandates

• C
 ompensation for Occupational Injuries
and Diseases Act No. 130 of 1993: Provides
for compensation for disability caused by
occupational injuries or diseases sustained or
contracted by employees in the course of their
employment, and for death resulting from such
injuries or disease.
• C
 onventional Penalties Act No. 15 of 1962:
Provides for the enforceability of penal provisions
in contracts.
• D
 esigns Act No. 195 of 1993: Provides for the
registration of designs and matters incidental
thereto.

The following Acts of Parliament are pertinent to the
functions of SANAC Trust:

• E
 mployment Equity Act No. 55 of 1998:
Provides for the measures that must be put into
operation in the workplace in order to eliminate
discrimination and promote affirmative action.

• T
 he Trust Property Control Act No. 57 of 1988:
Provides for control of trust property and for
matters connected thereto.

• L
 abour Relations Act No. 66 of 1996: Regulates
the rights of workers, employers and trade unions.

• B
 asic Conditions of Employment Act No. 75 of
1997: Provides for the minimum conditions of
employment that employers must comply with in
the workplace.
• C
 hild Care Act No. 74 of 1983: Provides for the
protection of the rights and well-being of children.

• O
 ccupational Health and Safety Act No. 85
of 1993: Provides for the requirements that
employers must comply with in order to create a
safe working environment for employees.
• P
 romotion of Equality and the Prevention
of Unfair Discrimination Act No. 4 of 2000:
Provides for the further amplification of the
Constitutional principles of equality and
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elimination of unfair discrimination.
• P
 rotected Disclosures Act No. 26 of 2000:
Provides for the protection of whistle-blowers in
the fight against corruption.
• P
 ublic Finance Management Act No. 1 of 1999:
Provides for the administration of State funds by
functionaries, their responsibilities and incidental
matters.
• S
 kills Development Act No. 97 of 1998: Provides
for the measures that employers are required to
take to improve the skills levels of employees.
• T
 he Copyright Act No. 98 of 1998: Provides
for the protection of intellectual property of a
literary, artistic or musical nature that is reduced
to writing.
• T
 he Merchandise Marks Act No. 17 of 1941:
Provides for the covering and marking of
merchandise and incidental matters.
• T
 rade Marks Act No. 194 of 1993: Provides for
the registration of trademarks, certification and
collective trademarks and matters incidental,
thereto.
• U
 nemployment Insurance Contributions Act No.
4 of 2002: Provides for the statutory deduction
that employers are required to make from the
salaries of employees.
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Organisational Structure- SANAC Trust
The organogram below reflects the organisational structure during the reporting period.

Board of Trustees

Governance &
Strategic Risk
Committee

Remuneration
Committee

Audit & Risk Comittee

CEO

Governance &
Administration

Donor
Coordination

NSP
Coordination

Communication

Governance &
Civil Society
Support

Campaigns

Monitoring &
Evaluation

Figure 1: The SANAC Trust Organisational Structure
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The SANAC Trust was established by
the Government of South Africa (the
founder) to support the implementation
of the National Strategic Plan by
improving coordination, mobilising
resources, and better monitoring and
evaluation.
The Trust is also required to foster dialogue and
build consensus so that government, civil society,
the private sector and donors cooperate to achieve
the same goals in respect of HIV, TB and Sexually
Transmitted Infections (STIs). Trustees are appointed
by the Deputy President of the Republic of South
Africa.

Foreword by the
Chairperson of
The Board of
Trustees

It falls to the SANAC Trust, as mandated by the
Deputy President of the Republic of South Africa, to
ensure that the nation works efficiently together to
combine our forces to tackle these three scourges.
The SANAC Trust exists to ensure that all government
departments, NGOs and civil society, donors and the
private sector are optimally engaged in the response.
On 1 April 2012, the Trust established the SANAC
Secretariat as the institution that will implement the
mandate of the Trust. In prior years, the Secretariat
function was carried out by the National Department
of Health. The Trust governs the activities of the
Secretariat. The governance of the Trust is guided by
the Trust Deed and the Trust Property Control Act and
the general principles of governance contained in the
Public Finance Management Act and the King IV Code.
A new Board of Trustees was appointed in the year
under review. The transition from the previous Board
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of Trustees has been smooth and efficient with new
Trustees being formally registered with the Master of
the High Court on 29 January 2016.
The Trust meets at least four times per year and
has established committees for Audit and Risk,
Remuneration and Governance and Strategic Risk. A
Company Secretary has recently been appointed.
This Annual Report has been approved by the Board
of Trustees. It catalogues both the financials and
the activities of the Secretariat and the compliance
of the Secretariat with applicable laws and policies.
Notably, it records a very favourable unqualified audit
opinion from the external auditors. Such a finding
gives the Trustees the assurance that there is probity
in the management of finances and effectiveness in
the performance of activities by the Secretariat. The
Trustees, in turn, assure the founder and the public
that the SANAC Trust is governed according to the
required standard as described in the independent
external audit opinion contained in this Annual Report.
This is the fourth consecutive unqualified audit
report the Trust has received in as many years since
the Trust became operational on 1 April 2012. This
gives the Trustees confidence in the performance,
management and administration of the Trust.

Dr GM Ramokgopa
Chairperson Of The South African National AIDS
Council Trust
11 August 2016
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Chief Executive
Officer’s Overview
The SANAC Secretariat was established by the SANAC
Trust and became operational as an independent
institution on 1 April 2012. This Annual Report covers the
fourth year of the operation of the Secretariat covering
the period 1 April 2015 through 31 March 2016.
The Secretariat receives a core grant from the Government of South Africa
through the National Department of Health, accounting for just over one
third of expenditure for the year under review. The Secretariat ensures
that it is able to finance all approved activities through its fundraising
activities. The Secretariat is therefore in an invidious position whereby
it is required to fundraise to cover both a portion of core, and almost all
project costs. This situation is being addressed by means of a Treasury
Review that commenced in the year under review and concludes that the
Secretariat should be funded through multiple government departments.
Given the limited resources, the Secretariat presented a budget to the
Trustees that focussed on priorities and found ways to do more with
less. The fundraising target was exceeded and an additional donor was
secured during the year. The increase in the diversity of funding sources is
a strength as it helps to reduce the risk of relying on one or two donors who
are unable to guarantee medium to long term funding.
The core activities of the Secretariat grew and became more effective
during the year under review. The function of monitoring saw the
Secretariat work with each of the nine provinces to produce a provincial
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The SANAC brand is becoming better
known and recognised both inside
government and in the public domain.
progress report and the Secretariat commenced its role
of reporting country data to UNAIDS every six months.
The NSP mid-term review was not published during the
year as planned as a decision was made to produce an
enhanced progress report with the latest data to be used
in the preparation of the next National Strategic Plan
(NSP).
The clear highlight of the year was in the area of resource
mobilisation and came in the form of the approval of a
US$304 million grant from the Global Fund to South
Africa for the period 1 April 2016 through 31 March 2019.
Even though the Secretariat does not benefit directly from
this grant, it nevertheless stands out as a key contribution
from the Secretariat to the implementation of the National
Strategic Plan.
Activities in respect of priority programmes of the NSP
also received a major boost in the year under review.
The Secretariat has led the charge in addressing HIV
prevention in young women aged 15 to 24. Notably,
the Secretariat led the proposal development and
successfully raised US$67 million for this programme in
five, high-burden districts in KwaZulu Natal and Gauteng.

The work on key populations also received much more
attention than before, with the Secretariat leading work in
respect of sex workers, LGBTI communities, drug users
and prison inmates. The highlight of this work was the
very successful launch of the National Sex Worker HIV
Plan that was launched by the Deputy President in March
2016.
This event, together with events such as World AIDS
Day, provided opportunities for a more outgoing
communications strategy which contributed to a higher,
positive public profile for SANAC than in previous
years. The SANAC brand is becoming better known and
recognised both inside government and in the public
domain.
The SANAC events such as World AIDS Day, the launch
of the National Sex Workers HIV Plan, and meetings such
as the SANAC Plenary, Inter-Ministerial Committee and
Civil Society, represent the ever-increasing participation
from leaders, especially in government. This bodes well
for the responsibility that the Secretariat has for building
consensus, fostering dialogue and ensuring a multi sector
response to the NSP.
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The Secretariat has grown significantly in terms of both
staff numbers and skills. The Secretariat has a skilled
and committed team of which the Trustees can be proud.
The relocation of the office to Hatfield has been a gamechanger for the team, which is thriving in an environment
that is more conducive to productive work.
Lastly, the stability in the governance of the Secretariat
and the presence of a supportive Chairperson and Board
of Trustees has given the Secretariat team the confidence
to continue to build the institution and to increase its
ambitious goals to contribute more to the implementation
of the country response to HIV, TB and STIs.

Dr Fareed Abdullah
Chief Executive Officer
The South African National AIDS Council Trust
11 August 2016
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Statement of Responsibility and Confirmation
of Accuracy for the Annual Report
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following:
All information and amounts disclosed in the annual report are consistent with the annual financial statements audited by the external auditors, ARC Inc. The
annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions.
The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the IFRS standards applicable to the entity.
The Board of Trustees is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements and for the judgements made in this information.
The Board of Trustees is responsible for establishing, and implementing a system of internal control that has been designed to provide reasonable assurance as
to the integrity and reliability of the performance information, the human resources information and the annual financial statements.
The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.
In our opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human resources information and the financial affairs of the entity
for the financial year ended 31 March 2016.

Dr Fareed Abdullah
Chief Executive Officer
The South African National AIDS Council Trust
11 August 2016
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PART B:
PERFORMANCE REPORT

ARC Inc’s Report:
Predetermined Objectives

Independent Assurance
Report on Selected
Performance Indicators
We have undertaken a limited
assurance engagement on selected
performance indicators, as described
below, and presented in the 2015-16
Annual Report of the South African
National AIDS Council (SANAC) Trust
for the year ended 31 March 2016 (the
Report).

Subject matter
We are required to provide limited
assurance
on
the
following
performance indicators, prepared in
accordance with the 2015-16 Annual
Performance Plan (APP), Technical
Indicator Descriptions as published
in the APP as well as any internally
generated policies and procedures
where necessary.
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Selected Programmes

Selected Performance indicators
Report with recommendations prepared for consideration by SANAC PIC, Plenary or Trust
Number of successful World AIDS day events conducted

Programme 3: NSP Implementation

Number of meetings of HOS to discuss coordination, capacity gaps and progress against NSP targets
Toolkit completed and published
Number of training sessions held with AIDS Councils on capacity needs gaps i.e. governance training
Annual monitoring and evaluation report published

Programme 4: Monitoring and
Evaluation

Global AIDS response progress reporting (GARPR) completed and submitted to Cabinet for noting
NSP mid-term review published
Number of PCAs with annual monitoring and evaluation reports published
Number of effective CCM meetings held
Application for additional funds submitted to Global Fund

Programme 5: Donor Co-ordination

Funds disbursed by the Principal Recipients by Global Fund
Oversight Committee reports submitted to the CCM
Number of costing TTT reports published
Number of Plenary meetings

Programme 6: SANAC Meetings

Number of CSF meetings
Number of PRC meetings
Technical Task Team meetings
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Trustees’ Responsibilities

Our Responsibility

The trustees are responsible for the selection, preparation
and presentation of the performance indicators in
accordance with the 2015-16 APP, Technical Indicator
Descriptions as published in the APP as well as any
internally generated policies and procedures where
necessary. This responsibility includes the identification
of stakeholders and stakeholder requirements, material
issues, for commitments with respect to sustainability
performance and for the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
of the Report that is free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express a limited assurance
conclusion on the selected performance indicators based
on the procedures we have performed and the evidence
we have obtained. We conducted our limited assurance
engagement in accordance with the International
Standard on Assurance Engagements (ISAE) 3000
(Revised), Assurance Engagements other than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information, issued by the
International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board.
That Standard requires that we plan and perform our
engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether
the selected performance indicators are free from
material misstatement.

Our Independence and Quality
Control
We have complied with the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants issued by the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants and the Code
of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors issued
by the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors, which
includes independence and other requirements founded
on fundamental principles of integrity, objectivity,
professional competence and due care, confidentiality
and professional behaviour.
In accordance with International Standard on Quality
Control 1, ARC Chartered Accountants and Auditors
Incorporated maintains a comprehensive system
of quality control including documented policies
and procedures regarding compliance with ethical
requirements, professional standards and applicable
legal and regulatory requirements.
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A limited assurance engagement undertaken in
accordance with ISAE 3000 (Revised) involves assessing
the suitability in the circumstances of the trust’s use
of the 2015-16 APP as the basis of preparation for the
selected performance indicators, assessing the risks
of material misstatement of the selected performance
indicators whether due to fraud or error, responding to
the assessed risks as necessary in the circumstances,
and evaluating the overall presentation of the selected
performance indicators. A limited assurance engagement
is substantially less in scope than a reasonable assurance
engagement in relation to both risk assessment
procedures, including an understanding of internal
control, and the procedures performed in response to
the assessed risks. The procedures we performed were
based on our professional judgement and included
inquiries, observation of processes performed, inspection
of documents, analytical procedures, evaluating the
appropriateness of quantification methods and reporting
policies, and agreeing or reconciling with underlying
records.

PART B: PERFORMANCE REPORT

Given the circumstances of the engagement, in performing
the procedures listed above we:
• Obtained an understanding of:
–– the entity and its environment;
–– entity-level controls;
–– t he significant reporting processes including how
information is initiated, recorded, processed,
reported and incorrect information is corrected,
as well as the policies and procedures within the
reporting process.
• I nterviewed management, employees and those
responsible for the preparation of the Report and
the selected actual performance, as we consider
necessary.
• I nspected relevant supporting documentation
and obtained such external confirmations and
management representations as we considered
necessary for the purposes of our engagement.
• P
 erformed analytical procedures and limited tests
of detail responsive to our risk assessment and the
level of assurance required, including comparison of
judgmentally selected information to the underlying
source documentation from which the information has
been derived.
The procedures performed in a limited assurance
engagement vary in nature from, and are less in extent
than for, a reasonable assurance engagement. As a result
the level of assurance obtained in a limited assurance

engagement is substantially lower than the assurance that
would have been obtained had we performed a reasonable
assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a
reasonable assurance opinion about whether the trust’s
selected performance indicators have been prepared, in
all material respects, in accordance with the 2015-16 APP,
Technical Indicator Descriptions as published in the APP
as well as any internally generated policies and procedures
where necessary.

Limited Assurance Conclusion
Based on the procedures we have performed and the
evidence we have obtained, nothing has come to our
attention that causes us to believe that:
• T
 he selected performance indicators as set out in the
subject matter paragraph for the year ended 31 March
2016 are not prepared and presented, in all material
respects, in accordance with the 2015-16 APP and
related Technical Indicator Descriptions included in the
APP.
• T
 he actual performance reported for the selected
performance indicators as set out in the subject matter
paragraph does not reflect the performance of the
trust for the year ended 31 March 2016.

Other Matters
Our report does not extend to any disclosures or assertions
relating to future performance plans and / or strategies
disclosed in the Report.
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The maintenance and integrity of the SANAC trust
website is the responsibility of the trust’s management.
Our procedures did not involve consideration of these
matters and, accordingly we accept no responsibility for
any changes to either the information in the Report or our
independent assurance report that may have occurred
since the initial date of presentation on the SANAC trust
website.

Restriction of Liability
Our work has been undertaken to enable us to express a
limited assurance conclusion on the selected performance
indicators to the trustees of SANAC trust in accordance
with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not accept or assume liability to any party
other than SANAC trust, for our work, for this report, or for
the conclusion we have reached.

ARC Chartered Accountants and Auditors Incorporated
Registered Chartered Accountants and Auditors (S.A.)
Per: F. van Heerden CA(SA)/RA
Associate
Pretoria
11 August 2016
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Performance
against
Predetermined
Objectives

Programme 1: Governance and
Administration
Introduction
The office move has been a big step forward for the
Secretariat. It has helped to raise the profile of SANAC as
an institution and has lifted the morale of the Secretariat
staff. The location of the office close to the Hatfield
Gautrain Station has made it a preferred destination for
all stakeholders. The office boardrooms are a constant
hive of activity for civil society, government, provinces,
development partners, the private sector and the
numerous technical task teams and working groups that
make up the SANAC family.

Governance by Trustees
As per the Trust Deed, the Deputy President, after
consultation with the Minister of Health and the Deputy
Chair of SANAC, appointed a new Board of Trustees at
the beginning of the third quarter of the financial year.
The new Chairperson of the Board of Trustees is Dr Gwen
Ramokgopa and the other nine trustees are, in alphabetical
order:
• Commissioner Sheila Khama
• Ms Mmapaseka Letsike
• Professor Koleka Mlisana
• Dr Ayanda Ntsaluba
• Ms Thandi Orleyn
• Dr Yogan Pillay
• Mr Pholokgolo Ramothwala
• Mr Mthetho Tshemese
• Mr Mluleki Zazini
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The new Trustees have been registered with the Master
of the High Court and their term officially began on 29
January 2016.
The SANAC Trustees met four times during the financial
year. The planned third quarter meeting did not take
place due to the change in Trustees and was held on 29
January 2016 with the new Trustees. Former Trustees
were informed at the end of September 2015 that their
terms of office had expired and new Trustees could only
act once they had been registered with the Master. In
the interests of continuity, two Trustees have had their
terms extended. These are Dr Ayanda Ntsaluba and Ms
Mmapaseka Letsike.
The Trust is now fully compliant with all legislative
requirements. Although the Trust meetings have always
had a quorum, there have been concerns about regular
attendance in the past. This has improved significantly in
the last two meetings where attendance was 90 and 100
percent respectively. All trustees have been registered
with the Trust’s banker and where appropriate, are able
to sign payments on a rotation basis, according to the
financial management policy.
The Audit and Risk Committee (ARC) has met four times
during the year. The Board of Trustees reviewed the ARC
membership on 19 February 2016 and requested that the
chairperson and three other members continue for another
year. Two Trustees, Mr Ramothwala and Commissioner
Khama, were appointed to the ARC to represent the Board
of Trustees.
The Remuneration Committee (Remco) has been fully
established. In addition to Dr Ntsaluba and Dr Abdullah,
Mr Zazini and Mr Tshemese were appointed to the Remco.
Mr Zazini was nominated by the Remco to chair the
Committee and the Board of Trustees endorsed this at its
last meeting.

PART B: PERFORMANCE REPORT

The Board of Trustees established the Governance
and Strategic Risk Committee, which is chaired by Ms
Thandi Orleyn. Prof Mlisana, Drs Pillay, Abdullah and
Chicksen were also appointed to the Committee - the
latter representing the Audit and Risk Committee.
All Committees are functional and have approved
terms of reference.

Financial Management
Internal Audit
New Internal Auditors were appointed at the fourth
board meeting and have completed a preliminary
review of the financial management processes of the
Secretariat. A full Internal Audit Plan based on the risk
register and operations of the Trust were reviewed
and approved by the ARC.
External Audit
The external audit by ARC Inc., the appointed auditor
for the 2015/2016 financial year, has been concluded.
This audit opinion is our fourth consecutive unqualified
audit report. The Board of Trustees approved the
audited financial statements at its meeting of 11
August 2016.
Interest and VAT
The Trust has now optimised its returns on investment
without putting funds at risk. The return on investment
was higher than budgeted due a favourable interest
rate and adherence to the investment policy. The
Trust is registered for VAT. A VAT return is submitted
every two months allowing the Trust to claim back
VAT from SARS.

Income, Expenditure versus Budget

Expenditure

Income

Year to date expenditure stands at R48.3 million at
the end of the financial year. This is 100% of planned
expenditure.

Annual income for the financial year is at 110% of the
amount planned. Commitments made by donors have
remained stable with an increase in commitments
from the CDC, the US-based Centres for Disease
Control - (rollovers of US$407 000), which balanced
decreased commitments from Deutsche Gesellschaft
für Internationale Zusammenarbeit GmbH (GIZ) for
the period. NDoH transfers were received in the third
and fourth quarters. An additional allocation of R3.5
million from the NDoH greatly improved the deficit
situation by approximately 50%. This is a better than
planned outcome.
Budgeted income was revised for donor funds. This
is due to the approval of carry-over funds in the CDC
grant of US$407 000. The GIZ expenditure has been
slower than planned and an extension for Phase 1 of
the grant to the end of the financial year was requested
and approved by GIZ. Phase 2 funds therefore, initially
planned for 1 January 2016, will now commence on 1
July 2016. Both the CDC and GIZ budgeted income
were revised in the adjustment budget to account for
these changes. This is reflected in the low variances
between budgeted and actual incomes.
Planned expenditure of approximately R7 million was
budgeted from reserves. The management team has
succeeded in reducing these planned expenditures
from reserves by controlling core expenditure,
(expenditure to be funded from reserves) and
raising replacement funds from external sources.
Expenditure from reserves stands at R3 million at the
end of the financial year.
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Overall, the trend is that the Trust is under-spending
in respect of donor funding and overspending on core
activities funded by government. Whilst expenditure
of donor-funded programmes needs to be improved
through better planning, increasing capacity in the
team and developing contingency plans for short
term exchange rate gains, greater effort needs to be
made to increase the government contribution to the
Trust.
Funding from government has remained at the same
level for the last four years. Additional funding to the
amount of R7 million was requested from the NDoH
for the shortfall in the current financial year and was
approved up to R3.5 million.

A Treasury-led process to review the mandate,
organisational design, budget and channels of funding
has been initiated at the request of the Deputy
President.
The Treasury will work with the Board of Trustees and
the management team to develop recommendations
for the Ministers of Health and Finance and the Deputy
President as required by the Trust Deed. One of the
key aims of this Treasury-led review is to address the
long-term sustainability of the SANAC Secretariat
and the Trust.
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Fundraising
This remains one of the most important objectives of the
management team. The team has exceeded the target of
R36 million by R8 million in the financial year and raised
a total of R45.26 million. The SANAC Trust participated
formally, for the first time, in the NDoH budget-making
process, together with the public entities of the NDoH.
Thanks must go to the DG (Ms Matsoso) and the DDG
(Dr Yogan Pillay) for facilitating our participation. The DG
of Health made a strong motivation for the SANAC Trust
to be funded from multiple departments. The Treasury
is committed to this approach but not for the 2016/17
financial year, as no additional funds were allocated to the
SANAC Trust for this year.

The CDC has approved additional funds for extra staff
needed to support the DREAMS project. These funds will
only become available in the 2016/17 financial year.
Exchange rate gains will only materialise in the 2016/2017
financial year as the rate is fixed at R10 to the US Dollar
and R13 to the Euro. The exchange rate gains are not
guaranteed and application will have to be made to donors
to rollover the gains into the next financial year.
Funding proposals have been submitted to the Lotteries
Fund (for the HCT and stigma campaigns) and to
the Global Fund for CCM support. Additional funding
opportunities are being explored with other government
departments and private foundations.

Human Resources
The Human Resources unit embarked on an employee file
audit resulting in a major improvement in the handling of
staff files which ensured compliance to legislation. Job
descriptions were prepared and signed by employees.
The process of implementing an effective performance
management system has commenced. A Performance
Management policy has been approved by the Remco and
the Board.
A proposal on the introduction of a provident fund for staff
has also been approved by Remco and the Board.

The HR statistics at the end of March 2016 are as follows:

Staff Establishment

48

Current Staff

Funded Vacancies

39

9

Recruitment in Process

6

Information Management
Information technology has greatly improved and a new system was installed at the new premises at minimal cost. This was required to sustain the increased demand in capacity. There
is minimal downtime on the new system and all documents are routinely backed up. Current equipment is being updated in small increments to minimise cost and maximise efficiency.
New procurement software has been installed in order to support and maintain the procurement policy and streamline procurement procedures.
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The following targets have been achieved during this financial year:
Strategic objective

Performance Indicator

Ensure the effective functioning of the Trust
according to the prescripts of the Trust deed and
appropriate legislation
Raise funds to finance activities of the SANAC
Trust

Target

Achieved

Number of effective trustees’ meetings

4

4

Number of effective meetings of the audit and risk committee

4

4

Type of audit opinion by external auditor

Unqualified

Unqualified

Amount of funds raised

R40 million

R45.26 million

4

5

Number of sources of income (diversification)
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Programme 2: Communications
This financial year provided an opportunity for the Communication unit to consolidate gains from 2015 as well as look towards the future, particularly with the development of a SANAC
Secretariat communication strategy. The strategy will allow for effective implementation of communication activities in support of SANAC’s vision.
SANAC’s digital profile continued to expand following an audit and review of the website and SANAC’s social media accounts.
The redesigned website, which now includes a portal with the latest statistics on HIV in South Africa, went live in March. SANAC’s social media platforms are now active and there has been
greater engagement and increased visibility on Twitter and Facebook.

In the 2014/15 financial
year, the SANAC Trust’s
website had 3.3 million
hits; during the six-month
period from July 2015
to December 2015, the
website garnered almost

2 million hits

Month

Unique visitors

Number of visits

Pages

Hits

Bandwidth (GB)

July 2015

5856

9457

44522

295110

8.40

Aug 2015

5734

9074

43434

295440

8,49

Sep 2015

5721

8865

49565

296447

9,03

Oct 2015

6048

9360

43004

303078

10,0

Nov 2015

7244

11542

71910

494809

23,76

Dec 2015

5383

7604

50470

310904

20,39

Total

35,986

55,902

302,905

1,995,788

80,07

Five SANAC News editions were published during the financial year, including a special World AIDS Day edition that was disseminated during the World AIDS Day event in the Ugu district
of KwaZulu Natal.
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World AIDS Day
SANAC’s World AIDS Day theme for 2015 was ‘Towards
an HIV-free Generation: Rise. Act. Protect’. A series of
videos and other promotional materials were produced
for the campaign, which included a dynamic social
media campaign involving local celebrities. The World
AIDS Day concept was developed and conceptualised in
partnership with civil society, in order to celebrate and
acknowledge the vital role that communities play in the
HIV response. This culminated in a series of profiles of
local champions working to end HIV in their communities.
A communication toolkit with information on how to use
the different materials during the campaign was shared
with all stakeholders (government, private sector and civil
society) and is available on the SANAC website.
SANAC is positioning itself as a thought leader on HIV
in South Africa and this is reflected by the increasing
media coverage received in 2015. Opinion pieces have
appeared in major online and print publications in the last
three quarters and key SANAC staff have given several
radio interviews in this period, while eNCA has requested
SANAC’s CEO to make several appearances on its
primetime evening news slot, in order to unpack issues on
HIV in South Africa. In addition, SANAC has worked with
eNCA producers to expand their roster of experts on HIV

Newspapers stable.

in South Africa, in order to provide viewers with a diverse
range of sources. SANAC has also been working closely
to develop strong ties with the national broadcaster. As a
result, two SANAC events were flighted as live broadcasts
on SABC’s Morning Live – at no cost. SANAC has also
regularly participated in SABC television shows such as
their weekly health magazine show and current affairs
radio shows. As part of its efforts to increase branding and
visibility, SANAC commissioned a full-page advertorial,
that was carried by five newspapers from the Independent

Strategic objective

Performance Indicator

Effectively and efficiently coordinate the
implementation of the NSP

The Communications Unit was involved in the development
of a national communication plan for the 21st International
AIDS Conference, held in July 2016. The Unit also led on
communications for the launch of the National Sex Worker
HIV Plan, which resulted in widespread media coverage.
The following targets have been achieved during this
financial year:

Target

Achieved

Number of SANAC news published

6

5

World AIDS Communication toolkits developed and published
on SANAC website

1

1

Exhibition at the AIDS Conference

1

1
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Programme 3: NSP
Implementation
Strengthening of AIDS Councils
The Provincial AIDS Councils on AIDS (PCA) support
remained a key area for the NSP Unit. Programmes
for PCA support included both financial and capacity
building to the provincial secretariats. Regular
meetings of the Heads of Secretariat have been held
in the year under review and work is progressing well
with respect to a common strategy for the national
and provincial council secretariats.
Trust funds were used to specifically support the
Limpopo PCA (LPCA). The support included technical
assistance with development of an organogram and
recruitment of staff within the provincial secretariat.
The Secretariat was also assisted with respect to
capacity building on the guidelines and roles for AIDS
Councils.

In Limpopo, Trust funds supported the establishment
of the PCA Secretariat in the office of the Premier until
31 May 2015 after which the funds were taken over from
1 June 2015 by the Premier’s office in Limpopo.
The Secretariat has developed a draft strategy
on capacity building and support of provincial,
district and local AIDS Councils to increase their
effectiveness.

Young Women
Young women and girls remains the number one
priority for SANAC in terms of HIV prevention. The
NSP Unit is leading the country coordination of
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the DREAMS programme for young women and
girls. DREAMS is a global partnership between the
U.S. President’s Emergency Plan for AIDS Relief
(PEPFAR), Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation and
Girl Effect. It seeks to reduce new HIV infections in
adolescent girls and young women in 10 sub-Saharan
African countries including South Africa. The ultimate
goal is to help girls develop into Determined, Resilient,
Empowered, AIDS-free, Mentored, and Safe women.

was buy-in and support from all stakeholders. The
programme was presented and approved by the
various SANAC structures (including the Prevention
Technical Task Team (PTTT), the Programme
Review Committee (PRC) and the SANAC Plenary).
The Deputy President, Deputy Ministers of Health
and Social Development and the Chairperson of the
SANAC Trust, Dr Gwen Ramokgopa, launched the
Plan on 11 March 2016.

In addition to the donor-supported focus on young
women and girls, on World AIDS Day 2015, the Deputy
President announced that the government of South
Africa would launch a national campaign focussing
on girls and young women with specific reference to
HIV infections and teenage pregnancy. A Technical
Working Group (TWG), co-chaired by Dr Nono
Simelela from the Office of the Deputy President and
the SANAC CEO, was established to lead the design
and planning of the national campaign. Secretariat
staff were responsible for the secretariat function,
communications, monitoring and evaluation. The
campaign was launched by the Deputy President in
Pietermaritzburg on 24 June 2016.

Whilst developing the South African National Sex
Worker HIV Programme Plan, the Sex Worker
Technical Working Group expressed concerns that
the current legislation surrounding sex work is an
obstacle to the full and efficient implementation of
the South African National Sex Worker HIV Plan.
Subsequently the same steering committee and
technical working group considered the issue of the
legal reform of sex work. A paper and presentation
to support the review of the legal status of sex work
was developed and presented to the PTTT, PRC and
SANAC Plenary. The proposed resolution of this
issue is to request the Deputy Minister of Justice to
present the findings of the South African Law Reform
Commission and submit recommendations to the
SANAC Inter-Ministerial Committee (IMC).

Key Populations
With the Secretariat increasing its focus on key
populations, much has been achieved in the period
under review.

The National Sex Worker HIV Plan
During the period under review, the Secretariat
prioritised development of a National Sex Worker HIV
Plan. A steering committee and technical working
group were successfully established to guide and
inform the development of the plan. The document
was developed in a consultative fashion and there
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MSM Programme
A Technical Working Committee for the review and
finalisation of the Men who have Sex with Men (MSM)
plan has resolved that the plan should not only focus
on MSM but should cover the entire LGBTI sector.
The objective of the plan is to have a comprehensive
and all-inclusive approach that addresses the issues
of the LGBTI community. The plan was to be launched
at the International Conference in July but has been
postponed to a date later this year.
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PWID Programme (People Who Inject Drugs)
The Secretariat, The Central Drug Authority (CDA) and
the Department of Social Development hosted a twoday workshop to discuss programme priorities and
collaboration. The meeting also focussed on consolidating
the South African progress report against the 2009
Political Declaration. The report was submitted to the
office of the Deputy Minister of Social Development. The
meeting also agreed that South Africa would support harm
reduction and the Secretariat will work with the CDA to
develop a comprehensive national programme on drugs,
alcohol, substance abuse, and HIV. The preparatory work
was done during the financial year under review.

Mobile and Migrant Populations
The Secretariat has commissioned, and completed,
through the International Organization for Migration
(IOM):
1.	
A review of HIV/AIDS/STI and TB services in the
Commercial Agricultural, Forestry and Fisheries
sector in South Africa to inform the development of the
sector HIV strategy – Emerging and Good Practices
Review.
2.	Mobile and Migrant Population Size Estimate Study
for selected districts in Limpopo and Mpumalanga
Provinces among the truckers, miners, migrant farm
workers and informal cross-border traders.
Guided by the findings of the Emerging and Good Practice
Review in the Commercial Agricultural, Forestry and
Fisheries sector, the Secretariat is working with the IOM
to look at policy and programmatic considerations for
efficient HIV response in the sector.

Social and Behaviour Change
Communication
The CCI (Centre for Communication Information) has
been appointed to develop a Strategic National Social and
Behavioural Communication Strategy for South Africa to
support the implementation of the National Strategic Plan
for HIV/AIDS, STIs and TB.
The framework and approach for the development of
the strategy will be informed by the P-process that was
developed and refined by the Johns Hopkins University
Centre for Communication Programmes. Throughout
the development of the strategy, two fundamental
principles will underpin the development of the
national communication strategy, namely stakeholder
participation and capacity building. Provincial and district
strategies will ultimately inform and guide the national
strategy, thereby creating a truly bottom up approach
in which stakeholders, provinces and districts own the
implementation of the communication strategy.

HCT Campaigns Coordination
The Secretariat has continued to play a central role in
overseeing the coordination, monitoring and support
of the implementation of the HIV Counselling and
Testing (HCT) campaign. A minimum of three national
nerve centre meetings were planned for the reporting
period however, six national HCT nerve centre meetings
were held. Four government departments and 16 civil
society and development representatives were regular
participants to the national nerve centre meetings.
A writing team was established to renew the national HCT
campaign strategy, in light of new developments and to
align it to the United Nations 90-90-90 strategy as well
as the District Implementation Plans of the Department
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of Health. An intern was seconded by the Foundation for
Professional Development to support the Secretariat with
the administration of the national nerve centre meetings,
while the Clinton Health Access Initiative (CHAI) has also
supported some of the meetings with refreshments.
A demand generation HCT proposal that would ensure
the resourcing of civil society and their meaningful
participation in the renewed HCT campaign was finalised
and submitted to the National Lotteries Board - the
requested amount is R 40.9 million over a three-year
period.

The Secretariat worked with the National House
of Traditional Leaders to translate the pledge
and commitment to the HCT campaign, which
they had signed with the National Department
of Health and SANAC, into an implementable
programme with screening targets and timelines.
The traditional leaders’ HCT campaign wave was
launched on 18 July 2015 in Limpopo province.
The Secretariat collaborated with the Deputy President’s
office, the Office of the Premier in KwaZulu Natal (KZN)
and the National Department of Health to successfully
rollout multi-event HCT waves in KZN. The first wave was
the HCT campaign for youth, which was held in August.
The second wave was the Family HCT campaign, which
was hosted by the National Rotary Club and key private
sector sponsors such as MTN, Coca Cola and the Caxton
Media Group. The third campaign wave included a taxi
colloquium on the taxi industry and HIV, and was followed
by a screening campaign in taxi ranks in and around
eThekwini.
As part of the sports and culture campaign wave, the
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Secretariat coordinated the distribution of condoms
at two major soccer matches. The first event,
held at the FNB stadium on 1 August, saw 75 000
condoms being distributed to 90 000 soccer fans at
the Chiefs and Orlando Pirates Carling Black Label
Cup in partnership with the Premier Soccer League
and South African Breweries. At the second match
on 16 December 2015 during the Telkom Charity
Knockout Game, 275 000 condoms were handed out
to 65 000 soccer fans in collaboration with the KZN
Government, Telkom SA, and the Premier Soccer
League.

The Secretariat also coordinated the limited rollout
of the farming sector HCT campaign in the Vhembe
district, which saw the launch of farm-based clinics
at Tshivase Tea Estates and Musina–Tshipise Citrus
growers.
The partnership enabled the farmers to donate
buildings to be used as clinics for the farm workers
and surrounding villages that provide labour to the

farms. The Vhembe District Health Office funds the
clinics, whilst AgriAIDS provides nurses and technical
support in preparation for a formal handover.

Resource Mobilisation
During the reporting period, the Secretariat made
significant inroads towards mobilising business to
join the national HCT campaign, particularly in high
prevalence districts and communities. A media event
was held in Gert Sibande District in Secunda to review
the implementation and results of a programme
targeting the informal business sector. Technology
Company EOH has invested R1 million into the South
African Business Coalition on Health and AIDS
(SABCOHA) community testing fund, matching the
Global Fund’s contribution. In addition, SASOL has
pledged R3 million for HIV testing in the Gert Sibande
and Fezile Dabi districts.
Work on the private sector strategy continued during
the reporting period and the strategy was adopted and
approved at the SANAC Plenary in November 2015.

SABCOHA is central to coordinating the participation
of the private sector through research and compiling
contact databases of business chambers across all
sectors to ensure that there is full participation and
representation of the private sector in all SANAC
structures and programmes.
World AIDS Day 2015 was a successfully organised
event. The SANAC Secretariat was responsible
for coordinating the event, which included the
Deputy President’s Office, National government
departments, provincial departments, districts and
local municipalities.
The Secretariat also supported the coordination of
the World AIDS Day event hosted by the National
House of Traditional Leaders held in Nkangala in
Mpumalanga. The event hosted by the National
House of Traditional leaders involved traditional
leaders reaching out to their communities during
a door-to-door campaign and at taxi ranks on 1
December 2015.

Strategic objective

Performance Indicator

Target

Achieved

Effectively and efficiently coordinate the
implementation of the NSP

Report with recommendations prepared for consideration by
SANAC PIC, Plenary or Trust

2

2

Number of successful World AIDS day events conducted

1

1

Number of meetings of HOS to discuss coordination, capacity
gaps and progress against NSP targets

4

2

Toolkit completed and published

1

1

Number of training sessions held with AIDS Councils on
capacity-needs gaps i.e. governance training

2

1
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Programme 4: Monitoring and
Evaluation
Staffing
The Monitoring and Evaluation Unit is fully capacitated
with the M & E Manager, Senior M & E Officer and nine
provincial M & E officers. M & E officers continuously
provide technical expertise to the Provincial AIDS Councils
as required. This involves participating in quarterly PCA
meetings and Inter-Departmental Committee meetings.
The national office provides technical support.

NSP Mid-Term Review
The Monitoring and Evaluation Unit carried out the NSP
Mid-Term Review (MTR) and published the Enhanced
NSP Progress Report in May 2016, two months after
the deadline. To ensure that the results of the MTR are
credible, robust, represent an accurate and realistic
assessment of the state of the response, and can lead
to practical and actionable recommendations on how
to strengthen the South African response to HIV and
TB, a Steering Committee was formed. The Steering
Committee included representatives from development
partners, government, Provincial AIDS Councils and civil
society and provided technical support, oversight and
guidance to the MTR in all stages of the process including
development of the methodology, key informants, review
and findings, and recommendations.
The key objectives of the MTR were to assess progress
made on the achievement of NSP goals and strategic

objectives; identify challenges and achievements in NSP
implementation; find strategic direction to scale up the
response to HIV, TB and STIs; and make recommendations
for the remainder of the current NSP period and the
following NSP.

MTR Findings
Findings from the review show that South Africa has
achieved a great deal during the course of the current
NSP (2012-2016). The country has reduced mother to
child transmission of HIV to very low levels, at least during
pregnancy and delivery.

Millions of lives have been saved as a result of the
widespread expansion of the ART programme,
with over 3 million people now on treatment.
Some of the country’s efforts on TB indicators
are improving, with treatment success among
new TB cases getting close to the international
benchmark of 85%.
Despite these successes, significant challenges remain.
HIV incidence remains stubbornly high, especially
among young women. While there is a renewed focus
on key populations, coverage of these populations with
HIV programmes remains too low. Retention of people
in the ART programme remains below target, and too
many people are being lost to follow up. In terms of the
TB programme, ensuring TB completion remains a
priority, especially given the country’s burden of Multi
Drug Resistant (MDR) and Extensively drug-resistant TB
(XDR TB). More should be done to diagnose and treat TB
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in children. Prevention programmes remain a challenge
and more efforts are required when it comes to social and
behavioural strategies.
South Africa could also be doing more to have good, reliable
data to inform programme planning and implementation.
M&E and surveillance need to be given greater priority,
based on up to date indicators and targets.

Global AIDS Response Progress Reporting
(GARPR) 2015
In fulfilling the 2011 UN Political Declaration on HIV and
AIDS, the SANAC M&E team prepared the 2015 Global
AIDS Response Progress Report (GARPR). The purpose
of the report is to assess progress made by South Africa
on the response and progress in achieving the global HIV
targets.
For 2015, the process of reviewing progress made on the
HIV and TB response in South Africa ran parallel with the
review of the National Strategic Plan on HIV/AIDS, TB
and STI 2012-2016. The process included an intensive
key HIV/AIDS, TB and STI document review as well as key
informant interviews and workshops with both national
and provincial stakeholders. The interim results were
reviewed and validated through a multi-sectoral Steering
Committee for the NSP and National Validation workshop
with all the stakeholders respectively.
The report covers a one-year reporting period for 2015,
focused on the ten target areas presented on the main
finding from the table below, categorised by global target
areas.
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Attainable

Is the country on track to reach the
target and commitment?

Reduce sexual transmission of HIV by 50% by 2015

No
Not on Track

Reduce transmission of HIV among people who inject drugs by 50% by 2015

No
Limited interventions and information

Eliminate new HIV infections among children by 2015 and substantially reduce AIDSrelated maternal deaths

Yes
On Track

Reach 15 million PLHIV with lifesaving antiretroviral treatment by 2015

Yes
On Track

Reduce TB deaths in PLHIV by 50% by 2015

No
Not on Track

Close the global AIDS resource gap by 2015 and reach annual global investment of
US$ 22-24 billion in low- and middle-income countries

Yes
On Track

Eliminate gender inequalities and gender-based abuse and violence and increase the
capacity of women and girls to protect themselves from HIV

No
Not on Track

Eliminate stigma and discrimination against people living with, and
affected by, HIV through promotion of laws and policies that ensure
the full realisation of all human rights and fundamental freedoms

Yes
On Track

Eliminate HIV-related restrictions on entry, stay and residence

Yes
On Track

Eliminate parallel systems for HIV-related services to strengthen integration of the
AIDS response in global health and development efforts

Yes
On Track
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DREAMS Monitoring and Evaluation Framework

Development of the M & E System

The Monitoring and Evaluation Unit actively participated in the development of the
DREAMS monitoring and evaluation framework by leading the process. DREAMS
is a programme focussed on strengthening preventions intervention on HIV in
Adolescent Girls and Young Women (AGYW). The process identified three major
impact indicators as follows:

During the development of the M&E System a number of internal (task team members
only) and external consultative meetings were held with the DREAMS National Project
Team, a Working Group and sub-set of the Prevention Work stream.

The purpose of the initial M&E task team was to familiarise themselves with the overall
goals of the DREAMS project. In the same meeting, members of the team were divided
into the DREAMS intervention banks. The intervention bank categories are:

Reduction in
01

new infections among AGYW by

02

new infections among AGYW male sexual partners by

03

Development of the Logic Model and Results Framework

5% by 2016 and 40% by 2017
2017

Empower girls and
young women

in teenage pregnancy among AG <18 years by

2017

The Task Team was mandated to develop the country’s overall M&E system for the
DREAMS project. Specific roles and functions of the task team are outlined below:

Mobilise
communities

Strengthen
families

Decrease risk in
sex partners

Implementing districts will receive the completed DREAMS framework with the
expected results to ensure tracking of appropriate indicators. Indicators and their
description will also be shared with the districts.

• Adapt the Global DREAMS logic model to the SA context
• Develop an M&E framework for the DREAMS project
• Develop M&E tools to guide the DREAMS data collection and reporting
• Develop the flow of information for the DREAMS indicators
• Oversee

and support the DREAMS impact evaluation and implementation of
science activities
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Young Women and Girls Campaign
The SANAC M&E Unit participated in the Young Women and Girls Campaign. The role of SANAC’s M&E unit was to co-chair the meetings with USAID and UNFPA. In addition, SANAC
coordinated the participation of other M&E units from government departments such as the Department of Health (DOH), Department of Basic Education (DBE), and Department of
Social Development (DSD).
The four objectives of the campaign are:

Decrease new HIV infections in
girls and young women by at least
30% over three years from
90 000 per year to less than 60
000, by end of year three

Decrease teen pregnancies
among under 18s by at least
30% over three years from
73 000 to 50 000

Keep 20% more girls in school
till matric

Decrease gender based violence
by 10% over 3 years

In terms of M&E, the following progress has been made:
• Mapping of provinces and districts completed in terms of District/sub-district prioritisation
• Alignment of the YWGC campaign results framework is running parallel with the DREAMS results framework

Provincial Annual Reports
The second round of the development of Provincial Annual Progress Reports based on Provincial Strategic Plans (PSP) 2012 - 2016 was
completed. The process was led by the M&E unit together with a consultant and with the active participation of Provincial M&E officers. The
aim was to transfer skills so that M&E Officers can develop the reports independently in the financial year 2016/2017.
The reports reviewed and assessed the progress made in the PSP for the period 2014 -2015 looking at all major achievements, gaps/
challenges and recommendations. The reports can be viewed on the SANAC website (www.sanac.org.za).
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Economic empowerment of
youth
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Strategic objective

Performance Indicator

Target

Achieved

To monitor progress of the NSP
and to fulfil international reporting
requirements

Annual monitoring and evaluation report published

1

1

Reported as part of the Mid Term Review report,
now known as the Enhanced Progress Report

Global AIDS response progress reporting (GARPR)
completed and sent to Cabinet for noting

1

1

Report was presented to the Minister of Health

NSP mid-term review published

1

1

Number of PCAS with annual monitoring and
evaluation reports published

9

9
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Programme 5: Donor Coordination
Strategic objective

To raise and support the effective
management of resources from donors
for the implementation of the NSP

Performance Indicator

Target

Achieved

Number of effective CCM meetings held

4

6

Application for additional funds submitted to Global
Fund

1

1

US$80
million

US$97.6
million

Oversight Committee reports submitted to the CCM

4

3

Number of costing TTT reports published

1

1

Funds disbursed by the Principal Recipients by Global
Fund

The Global Fund
This has been a crucial year for the Donor Coordination
Unit (DCU) as we had submitted a joint HIV and TB
proposal to the Global Fund (GF) on 15 July 2015 to cover
the implementation of programmes supporting the NSP
from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2019. The proposal was
successful and was assessed as high quality by both
the Technical Review Panel and the Grants Approval
Committee, and to be fully funded as funding availability
allows. A maximum funding celling of US$304 million was
set by the Grants Approval Committee.
The proposal focuses on the following key populations
in the districts with the greatest expected impact: young
women and girls between the ages of 10 and 24 years
including an innovative “cash plus care” element for
women aged 19 to24 years; men who have sex with men
and transgender persons; sex workers and their clients;
intravenous drug users; key populations who are victims
of gender based violence; inmates (comprehensive
HIV and TB programming), TB screening and linkage
to care in informal settlements in peri-mining areas
and key metros; and support for the implementation of
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decentralised services for people with MDR TB. It also
supports the availability of antiretroviral drugs and some
key services designed to strengthen our health system
including supply chain management for the delivery of
antiretroviral and other drugs, monitoring and evaluation,
and laboratory service provision.
Since April 2015, we have had five GF CCM meetings
and a GF CCM Retreat was held from 31 August to
2 September.
Some of the other key processes and highlights that are
necessary as part of the development and submission of
the proposal include:
• T
 he selection of Principal Recipients to be nominated
for this grant: National Department of Health, KwaZulu
Natal Treasury, Western Cape Department of Health,
Right to Care, Networking AIDS Community of SA, Soul
City Institute, Kheth’Impilo, and the AIDS Foundation
South Africa;
• T
 he GF CCM underwent an Eligibility Performance
Assessment by a team from an external service
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provider, Grant Management Solutions, and then
subsequently developed a Performance Improvement
Plan that is currently being implemented.
• A
 t the GF CCM Meeting on 18 June 2015, a new vicechairperson of the GF CCM was elected, Ms Jacqueline
Bodibe, after the Civil Society Forum withdrew the
previous incumbent earlier in the year.
• N
 ew members of the CCM were welcomed: Three
Government Departments (National Treasury,
National Department of Health and the Department of
Correctional Services), and a representative from the
WHO.
• T
he three-day CCM Retreat from 31 August to 2
September 2015 included orientation sessions
and discussion on the revision of the governance
documents.
• F
 unding was secured from the Global Fund to conduct
a Key Population size estimation and programmatic
mapping for Sex Workers, Men having Sex with Men,
Transgender and People who Inject drugs in 2015.
Following a competitive bid process, the Human
Science Research Council (HSRC) was appointed
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to conduct this activity. The final draft of this report
was submitted to the Global Fund in December 2015
for consideration, although they have been involved in
the various stages. In support of this activity, a meeting
was held with key stakeholders to reach consensus on
key population figures in South Africa, using the Delphi
Approach.
Since we received formal feedback from the Technical Review
Panel (TRP) and the Grants Approval Committee (GAC), we
have been working with the Principal Recipients (PRs) to
conclude grant negotiations with the GF Secretariat as well as
providing a formal reply to the recommendations put forward
by these two structures. This work involves substantial
support to the PRs and on-going work with the GF Secretariat
to improve the programmes and plan for maximum impact.
The grant negotiations were completed in the first quarter of
the 2016 year. All of the grants have been signed.
Whilst the new proposal was being prepared, the other
functions of the unit continued, including the efforts of the
Oversight Committee and the Donor Co-ordination Team to
ensure that maximum funds are accessed by the PRs from
the Global Fund.

In the period 1 April 2015 to the end of the financial
year, US$97 million has been disbursed by the
GF to the PRs; demonstrating steady, consistent
access to funds from the Global Fund.

Funds disbursed by the GF: 2011 to 2015 in USD
120,000,000
101,764,799
100,000,000

97,627,053,59

88,197,973
80,305,991

80,000,000

60,000,000
37,118,089

40,000,000
20,000,000

18,446,689

0
1 April 2010 to
31 March 2011

1 April 2011 to
31 March 2012

1 April 2012 to
31 March 2013

1 April 2013 to
31 March 2014

1 April 2014 to
31 March 2012

1 April 2015 to
31 March 2016

Table: Global Fund’s yearly disbursements

This steady flow of funds represents an ability of the
implementers to absorb the funds and to spend according to
plan whilst meeting all the GF and CCM requirements.

South African National AIDS Council Trust
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There are specific requirements of Oversight from the GF
CCM and the Oversight Committee to ensure that this
flow of funds is maintained.
The Oversight Committee (OC) has reviewed the
performance of all six Principal Recipients every quarter
and has provided the CCM members with an updated
dashboard completed by the PRs and checked and
analysed by the Secretariat, a summary report compiled
by the Oversight Committee and a presentation with
discussion points at the CCM meetings. The OC was also
able to do a site visit in the last quarter of 2015 when they
visited sites that provide services to victims of genderbased violence in the Western Cape.

PEPFAR Partnership Framework
Implementation Plan
A PFIP Work Stream Meeting was held on 24 August
2015 with PEPFAR representatives and cluster managers
from NDoH. The HIV Prevention Advisor from the Donor
coordination unit represented the unit at this meeting cochaired by Dr F Abdullah and Dr Y Pillay.
The purpose of the meeting was:
• T
 o discuss PEPFAR reporting indicators that are not
aligned to South Africa’s national reporting system
• T
 o develop a tool to guide and monitor partner
support
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Subsequent to this meeting, a PFIP Prevention Work
stream meeting was held on 23 November 2015. At the
meeting, the focus was on reviewing all the work being
planned and done for young women and girls by different
partners to prevent duplication and enhance alignment of
programme content and monitoring and evaluation.

HIV Prevention
The proposed approach for the development of a SANAC
HIV Prevention Strategy was presented at the Prevention
Technical Task Team (TTT) meeting held on 8 September
2015. The proposed strategy will be based on geospatial
mapping and hotspot profiling and supported by the
development of an optimum package of interventions for
the specific profile and drivers identified. As one of the first
steps, a SANAC Hotspot Mapping Advisory Committee
was established. The first meeting of this structure was
held on 26 November 2015 to discuss and agree on the
approach and next steps.

Private Sector Strategy
In our efforts to engage with the private sector we continue
to work with a small group of interested parties to develop
a tool for the collection of data from the private sector to
better represent the contribution of the private sector
to the implementation of the NSP. We also appointed
a consultant to develop a private sector engagement
strategy and this was completed and finally approved at
the SANAC Plenary at the end of 2015.
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Programme 6: Government and
Civil Society Support
Throughout this period, the Secretariat managed
to align the meetings of the various governance
structures such as the CSF, as well as the TTT
meetings, to enable the PRC to draft the agenda for
the SANAC Plenary.

Technical Task Team meetings
(Prevention and Human Rights)
Prevention Technical Task Team
A meeting took place on 1 September 2015 and it was
agreed that the Prevention and Social and Structural
Drivers Task Teams would meet jointly in future,
chaired by Prof Quarraisha Abdool-Karim.
Highlights
of
the
meeting
included
the
recommendation that the Sex Worker strategy as well
as the process for the social and behaviour change
communication strategy be presented at the SANAC
PRC meeting for recommendation to the Plenary. It
was also suggested that SANAC should continue to
lead the Young Women and Girls prevention strategy.
Legal and Human Right Technical Task Team
Deputy Minister Jeffery and Ms Love chair the Legal
and Human Rights TTT, with high-level participation
of Department of Justice and the South African Law
Reform Commission.
At the meeting held on 4 September 2015, it was
recommended that the law reform of sex work
be presented at the SANAC PRC meeting for
recommendation to the Plenary. A concern was raised
about the effectiveness of the Thuthuzela Centres

and the Deputy Minister of Justice has requested a
report on the administration of the centres to ensure
better management of the funds received from
the Global Fund. Lastly, the lack of funds for the
continuation of the stigma communication campaign
was flagged as an issue that needs to be addressed.

PRC meeting
The PRC chaired by the DG in the Department of
Health Ms. Precious Matsoso took place on the
29 September 2015 and was set up to discuss
and recommend key strategic documents to be
presented at both the SANAC Plenary and the Inter
ministerial Committee. The documents discussed
included the sex worker plan, sex work legal reform,
SANAC procedural guidelines as well as the resource
plan.

SANAC Plenary
The SANAC Plenary took place on the 6 June and
again on 14 November 2016. This was the third
plenary meeting of the Deputy President. He further
cautioned that the Plenary should not be used for
complaints but rather resolutions. In conclusion,
he undertook to discuss the leadership role of the
Premiers in their provinces.

Civil Society
The SANAC Secretariat continues to provide ongoing support to Civil Society (CS) and two Civil
Society Co-ordinating Committee meetings were
held during this period, including a meeting with the
Malawi AIDS Council.
The SANAC Secretariat forms part of the CSO Study
Steering Committee and is providing technical

South African National AIDS Council Trust

assistance with the study report titled: “Recognising
the past, securing the future: South African civil
society organisations and the HIV and AIDS response”
The Secretariat drafted two proposals in consultation
with Civil Society for the participation in the Global
Village at the International AIDS Conference 2016
and both was approved:
• Exhibition stand in the Global Village;
• Ubuntu

Calabash Project - Addressing HIV
Stigma Through Music
SANAC Civil Society Sector leaders participated in
the World TB event on the 22nd March 2016 at the
Marapong Stadium in Lephalale.

Civil Society Forum
A Civil Society Forum meeting took place on 29
July 2015. During this meeting governance issues,
programmatic work, fundraising and the election
of sector representatives for various SANAC
governance structures took place. It included the
election of two Deputy Chairpersons. The second
Civil Society Forum meeting took place from 8 to 9
March 2016 and addressed issues around the funding
of CS organisations.

A Task Team was established to work on the NHI White
Paper that sets out the framework on the transformation
of the health system.
Stigma and Discrimination
The results from the PLHIV Stigma Index, completed
in March 2015, were used to develop the stigma and
discrimination programme.
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Legal Aid South Africa
SANAC signed a Memorandum of Understanding with
Legal Aid SA (LASA) to promote access to justice for
vulnerable groups, especially to persons living with HIV/
AIDS and TB, to create a linkage between Legal Aid SA and
SANAC`s collaborating partners and to provide quality
legal advice and services in matters relating to HIV/AIDS
and TB stigma and discrimination.
Eighty Legal Aid officials, one paralegal from each Justice
Centre and the call centre staff were trained. Over and
above the legal advice and referral being provided, the
Legal AIDS Toll Free number: 0800 110 110, allows for
tracking and reporting as per the graph below.
The number of calls to the toll free Legal Aid South African
number has dropped significantly since its launch in 2015.
A meeting was held between SANAC, Legal Aid South
Africa, Webber Wentzel, Section 27 and ILO and it was
agreed that targeted communication material (booklet,
poster and sticker) would be developed to promote the
number as widely as possible

Development of a Stigma Reduction
Intervention Model
The South African National AIDS Council (SANAC) and
the AIDS Consortium (AC) conducted a pilot HIV and TB
stigma reduction and prevention project in the Eastern
Cape.
The project was implemented in three municipalities –
King Sabatha Dalindyebo (KSD), Nyandeni,and Ngquza in
the OR Tambo District. The approach follows a research
and development model that can be adapted and scaled
up to national level based on the needs of the community.
Understanding the health context and culturallyembedded concerns of Eastern Cape communities
is necessary for stigma reduction. To support the
development of a communication campaign around
stigma reduction, two workshops were held in October to
incorporate audience perspectives and insights into the
development of communication resources.

DFID committed R5.8 million towards
the 360-degree communication
campaign, which ran from July to
August 2015. These adverts, supported
by the Legal Aid number, were launched
in May 2015.
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Meetings took place with the steering committee and the
last phase of this project was presented. Field researchers
have been working on gathering primary data. This data
will be supplemented by interviews with lead personnel
in the AIDS Consortium as well as SANAC. This will
determine the extent to which the approach implemented
can inform a model for stigma reduction that has potential
for scale-up in South Africa.

Stigma and Discrimination Communication
Campaign
It is important to create a long-term dialogue around
stigma and discrimination with South Africans.
Three adverts were developed, each of which dealt with
the following key issues:
• Internalised stigma
• Young people born with HIV
• Access to Legal AID Services.

HAVE YOU BEEN TREATED UNFAIRLY BECAUSE OF
YOUR HIV OR TB STATUS?
CALL THE LEGAL AID ADVICE LINE ON 0800 110 110

South African National AIDS Council Trust
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This campaign aimed to reduce stigma and discrimination and promote the call centre number as well as the AIDS Helpline. The campaign targeted the following mediums below:

We used the data received from LASA to plot it against the broadcast of the adverts during the July period. Please see graph below.
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Strategic objective

Performance Indicator

Effectively and efficiently coordinate the
implementation of the NSP

Number of Plenary meetings

2

2

Number of CSF meetings

2

3

Number of PRC meetings

2

1

Second meeting was postponed to 26 April 2016
due to chairperson's travel overseas

Technical Task Team meetings

8

2

Strategy of meetings was changed. Two TTTs
prevention and social structural drivers, were
combined and DOH leading one TTT on Care and
Support
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Target
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Achieved

Comment
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Summary of Financial Information
Revenue Collection
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to SANAC Trust and revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is
measured at fair value of the consideration receivable on an accrual basis. It includes investment and non-operating income exclusive of value-added taxation,
rebates and discounts.
Table 1 Revenue Collection
2015/16

2014/2015

Estimated

Actual amount
collected

Over/ (Under)
Collection

Estimated

Actual amount
collected

Over/ (Under)
Collection

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

DFID

5,548

5,548

-

1,543

2,751

1,208

CDC

16,070

15,054

- 1,016

4,560

3,543

- 1,017

GIZ

2,010

2,014

4

6,900

3,594

- 3,306

15,840

20,532

4,692

15,000

15,806

806

686

686

3,817

3,817

1,100

1,467

367

1,000

1,733

733

40,568

45,302

4,734

29,003

31,244

2,241

Sources of revenue

Government Grants
Goods and Services in Kind
Interest Received
Total
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Programme Expenditure
The main driver of unexpected cost was the recognition of non-exchange transactions resulting from donations of goods and services from various donors. The donations were recognised
in income along with the corresponding capitalisation of assets or recognition of expenses relating to the type of non-exchange transaction. These expenses along with their income cannot
be budgeted for as they are at the discretion of various donors and partners. Therefore, no adjustment was made in the budget from 2014/15 to 2015/16.
Table 2: Programme Expenditure
2015/16

2014/2015
(Over)/ Under
Expenditure

Budget

Actual Expenditure
R’000

R’000

R’000

NSP Implementation

7,296

7,201

Governmental & Civil
Society Support

2,234

2,216

10,594

10,995

Donor Coordination

8,146

8,272

Communications

7,382

7,234

Monitoring & Evaluation

8,271

8,363

Governance &
Administration

3,749

4,016

47,672

48,299

Budget
Programme name

Remuneration

Total

39

Actual Expenditure

(Over)/ Under
Expenditure

R’000

R’000

R’000

95

9,379

12,620

-3,241

18

2,788

3,546

-758

-

401

5,780

4,382

1,398

-

126

4,120

4,865

-745

148

3,038

3,561

-523

-

92

5,205

4,220

985

-

267

2,671

2,290

381

-625

32,981

35,484

-2,503
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The AIDS Memorial Quilt Project
South African National AIDS Council Trust
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PART C:
GOVERNANCE

The Accounting
Authority/The Board
Of Trustees

Introduction
In September 2015, a new Board
of Trustees was appointed by
the Deputy President of South
Africa.
The new Trustees have been registered
with the Master of the North Gauteng High
Court and their term officially began on 29
January 2016.
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Roles and Responsibilities of the
Board of Trustees
The roles and responsibilities of the Trustees are
stated in the Trust Deed.

Trust Deed
The Trust is governed by the Trust Property Control
Act 57 of 1988 and the Trust Deed that paves the
way forward in which the Trust must be governed.
The Trust was established in 2002. The Trust Deed
was amended during the course of 2012 and the
new Trust Deed was approved by the Trustees,
the Deputy President and Minister of Health in the
first quarter of 2013. In May 2013, the Trust Deed
was also approved by the Minister of Finance and
the SARS Commissioner. The Deed as well as the
documents relating to the change of Trustees has
been registered with the Master of the High Court.

Composition of the Board of Trustees
Table 3: Composition of the Board of Trustees
Trustees were appointed in writing by the Deputy President in September 2015 and registered with the North
Gauteng High Court in January 2016. For continuity, two Trustees have had their terms extended. These are Dr
Ayanda Ntsaluba and Ms Mmapaseka Letsike.
Name

Designation (in terms of SANAC Trust’s
Board structure)

Date appointed

Dr G Ramokgopa

Chairperson of the Trustees

January 2016

Ms S Khama

Trustee

January 2016

Ms ME Letsike

Trustee

September 2013

Prof K Mlisana

Trustee

January 2016

Dr A Ntsaluba

Trustee

September 2013

Ms T Orleyn

Trustee

January 2016

Dr Y Pillay

Trustee

January 2016

Mr P Ramothwala

Trustee

January 2016

Mr M Tshemese

Trustee

January 2016

Mr M Zazini

Trustee

January 2016

South African National AIDS Council Trust
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Board Committees
Table 4: Committees of the Board of Trustees
During the 2015/16 financial year, the following sub-committees were established:
Committee

No of Meetings held

No of members

Name of members

4

6

Ms Monique Malan
Ms S Khama
Dr Brian Brink

Audit and Risk Committee

Ms Thembeka Mthethwa
Mr P Ramothwala
Dr Brian Chicksen
2

3

Remuneration Committee

Mr M Zazini
Mr M Tshemese
Dr. Ayanda Ntsaluba

1
Governance & Strategic Risk Committee

1

Ms T Orleyn
Prof K Mlisana
Dr Y Pillay

Risk Management
The process of risk management entails the
identification of key risks along with risk evaluation and
risk mitigating strategies. Risks are evaluated based
on their inherency and the effectiveness of controls
to mitigate. Any gap between the accepted level of
risk and the residual risk after mitigating strategies is
investigated and additional controls and procedures
are implemented to bring all risk to an acceptable level.
The Audit and Risk Committee has reviewed the
Risk Management procedures of the Trust and their
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NEXIA-SAB&T was appointed as internal auditors during the
year. The delay in their appointment was related to the change
of Trustees and the delay in their registration with the Master
of the High Court. The Internal Auditors completed a review
of the financial systems and performance information. Their
reports were reviewed by the Audit and Risk Committee. The
report of the Audit and Risk Committee contains a review of
the internal control function.

Fraud and Corruption
A comprehensive Fraud and Corruption policy has been
developed and implemented. No issues were identified
during the year.

Minimising Conflicts of Interest
All staff has been advised of the need to declare any conflicts
of interest in the course of any procurement that they may
be involved in. All staff has been asked to sign declarations of
interest as required by the HR Policy.
All suppliers are required to disclose any conflicts of interest
in order to register on the Supplier Data Base.

findings are outlined in the report of the Audit and Risk
Committee below.

Internal Audit and Audit
Committees
The purpose of the Internal Audit is to review the
effective functioning of internal controls. They report
to the Chief Executive Officer and the Audit and Risk
Committee on all matters relating to internal control
and any challenges that the organisation faces relating
thereto.

South African National AIDS Council Trust

Code of Conduct
A code of conduct has been developed and implemented. All
new staff are made aware of the Code of Conduct and agree
to commit to it in their contract of employment.

Health, Safety and Environmental
Issues
The SANAC Trust complies with Health and Safety Laws and
Regulations.
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Report of the Audit and Risk Committee for the
Year Ended 31 March 2016
We are pleased to present our report for the financial
period ended 31 March 2016.

Functions of the Audit and Risk
Committee
The Audit and Risk Committee (“the Committee”) is a
committee of the Board of Trustees. It assists the Board
of Trustees through advising and making submissions
on financial reporting, oversight of the risk management
process and internal financial controls, external and
internal audit functions and statutory compliance of
SANAC Trust.

Composition and meetings
At 31 March 2016, the Committee consisted of six
independent non-executive members. The Audit and
Risk Committee Charter (“the Charter”) requires the
Committee to hold at least four meetings per annum. At
31 March 2016, the Committee held five meetings on the
following dates:

At its meeting on 15 February 2016 the Committee welcome two more members serving in
their capacity of representatives of the Board of Trustees. The new Board of Trustees amended
the composition of the Committee and re-appointed four of the existing members into the new
Committee. The composition of the Committee as well as attendance at the meetings were as
follows:
Names

Period served

Number of
meetings
held

Number of
meetings
attended

Monique Malan (Chairperson)

1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

5

5

Dr Brian Brink

1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

5

1

Brian Chicksen

1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

5

1

Siyabonga Jikwana

1 April 2015 to 19 February 2016

5

0

Sikkie Kajee

1 April 2015 to 19 February 2016

5

3

Thembeka Mthethwa

1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

5

2

Sheila Khama (Trustee)

19 February 2016 to 31 March 2016

1

0

Pholokgolo Ramothwala
(Trustee)

19 February 2016 to 31 March 2016

1

1

• 12 May 2015
• 16 July 2015
• 28 September 2015
• 21 January 2015
• 15 February 2016

South African National AIDS Council Trust
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Subsequent to the reporting date one of the members
resigned from the audit committee, leaving a vacancy
for this position.
The Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial
Officer and representatives of the external and
internal auditors attend the Committee meetings by
invitation. The internal and external auditors have
unrestricted access to the Committee.
Subsequent to the end of the financial year, the
Committee has held meetings during May and July
2016 for the purposes of reviewing the annual financial
statements, the report of the external auditor and the
draft management report.

Duties

Management Policy; and
• Accepting the new Travel Policy.

Oversight of risk management

• S
 atisfied itself that the internal audit function has
the required resources, budget, standing and
authority to enable it to discharge its functions;

The
Committee
received
assurance
from
management that the process and procedures
followed in terms of acceptable risk management
procedures are adequate to ensure that financial
risks are identified and monitored.

• R
 eviewed the effectiveness of SANAC Trust’s
system of internal financial controls, including
receiving assurance from management, internal
audit and external audit;

The Committee has satisfied itself that the following
areas have been appropriately addressed:

• R
 eviewed significant issues raised by the internal
and external audit process, the corrective actions
identified and suggested enhancements to the
current controls and processes; and

• Financial reporting risks;
• Internal financial controls;
• Fraud risks as it relates to financial reporting; and

The Committee has adopted formal terms of reference
as its Charter, which is reviewed regularly. The
Committee operates in accordance with the Charter and
has executed its duties during the period in accordance
with its terms of reference.
In addition to its delegated duties referred to below,
the Committee made the following submissions to
the Board of Trustees on matters relating to:
• C
 onsidering the legal structure of SANAC Trust
and whether it should be a public sector or private
sector entity;

45

performance of the internal audit function and
compliance with its mandate;

• IT risks as it relates to financial reporting.

Internal Financial Control
The system of controls within SANAC Trust is
designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets
are safeguarded and that liabilities and working capital
are properly managed. An internal audit function
provides the Committee and management with
assurance that the internal controls are appropriate
and effective.
The Committee has:

• R
 ecommending new independent internal
auditors for SANAC Trust;

• R
 eviewed and recommended the internal audit
charter and annual plan for approval;

• Accepting the amended Supply Chain

• Evaluated the independence, effectiveness and

South African National AIDS Council Trust

• R
 eviewed policies and procedures for preventing
and detecting fraud.
During the year the contract between the Trust
and its internal auditors was concluded. The
Committee assisted management in the process of
identifying new internal auditors through a proper,
unbiased procurement processes. The Committee
recommended a suitable candidate to the Board
of Trustees, but due to the delay in the registration
of the new Trustees, the new internal auditors were
only appointed on 19 February 2016. This resulted
in a delay in the effective delivering of service in the
internal audit function.
In June 2015 the retiring internal auditors provided
the Committee with a confirmation that the internal
controls of the Trust were partially satisfactory, based
on their last report indicating certain noteworthy
deficiencies in the system of internal control. The
Committee notes management’s commitment to
address these matters and will monitor management’s
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progress in resolving these issues on a regular basis.
Subsequent to the financial year end the new internal
auditors commenced their duties by performing a proper
risk assessment by engaging with the Board of Trustees
and management in identifying proper strategic and
operational risk areas and subsequently revising the risk
register.

Evaluation of the annual financial
statements and external audit
In execution of its statutory duties during the past financial
period, the Committee has:

Based on processes followed and assurance received,
nothing has come to the Committee’s attention with
regard to:
• Limitations in the external auditor’s independence; or
• C
 omplaints relating to the accounting practices and
internal audit of SANAC Trust, the content or auditing
of its financial statements, the internal financial
controls of SANAC Trust, and any other related
matters.
In addition to their statutory duties, the external
auditors also perform a limited assurance review on the
performance information included in the Annual Report of
the Trust.

• R
 eviewed and discussed the draft Annual Financial
Statements with management before submission to
the external auditors;

Regulatory compliance

• R
 eviewed and discussed the audited Annual Financial
Statements to be included in the Annual Report with
the management and the external auditors;

The Committee is not aware of any matters of
noncompliance relating to any applicable legal and
regulatory responsibilities.

• Reviewed the accounting policies and practices;

Appreciation

• R
 eviewed the external auditor’s management report
and management responses, thereto;
• R
 eviewed the entity’s compliance with the legal and
regulatory provisions; and
• R
 eviewed significant adjustments resulting from the
audit.

We wish to acknowledge the dedication and hard work
performed by management and other officials. We are
grateful and appreciative of their support and consistent
value adding contributions.
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We are also very appreciative of the entirely professional
and supportive relationship with the external auditors.

Statement by the chairperson of the
audit committee
The Committee has complied with legal, regulatory
and other responsibilities assigned to it by the Board of
Trustees.
In making these assessments, we have obtained feedback
from management, external and internal audit.
Based on processes and assurance obtained, as
chairperson of the audit committee, I recommend the
annual report, including the annual financial statements
to the Board of Trustees for approval.
On behalf of the Audit Committee

Monique Malan (Chairperson)
29 September 2016
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PART D:
HUMAN RESOURCES
MANAGEMENT

Human Resources
Management

During the year under review
the Trust underwent an
extensive HR review and
a
salary
benchmarking
exercise. This has enabled
the Trust to appoint staff
at the appropriate levels
of
remuneration
and
responsibility.

Our Policies were also reviewed to
ensure they are complete and suitable.
Staff were appointed during the course
of the year as described below.

47

South African National AIDS Council Trust

PART D: HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

Human Resource priorities for the year under review
1. Organisational Structure
The Trust has revised its structure for the period under review. In addition, new positions were created and this led to the size of the organisation growing to a
total of 48 positions with 9 vacancies, 2 secondments and 39 filled positions.

2. Recruitment of Staff
Due to the revised organisational structure and increase in the size of the organisation, the vacancy rate at the end of this reporting period is 18%; however, the
Secretariat is putting effort into filling the vacant positions. The Secretariat was able to negotiate secondments of additional staff during the year under review.

3. Highlights
The Secretariat has made the following progress since April 2015:

All staff have signed
job descriptions

Job profiles for all
staff were created
and evaluated as
part of a Human
Resources review

Salary scales were
developed and
implemented

4. Challenges faced by the Trust

5. Future Human Resources Plans

• T
 he recruitment of suitably qualified staff continues to be a challenge.
The Trust requires a very specific and scarce skill-set for key positions in
order to fulfil its mandate. This impacted the timeframes for recruitment,
selection and appointments, but the human resource department is
working towards filling the vacancies as soon as possible.

The focus areas for the next reporting period are:

• H
 R is engaged in a process to find ways of attracting and retaining talent
in an effort to address the reasons for the high staff turnover experienced
in the past year.

A draft performance
management policy
was developed

• Reducing the number of vacancies
• Developing suitable benefits packages to attract and retain staff
• Implementing a performance management system.

South African National AIDS Council Trust
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Human Resources Oversight Statistics
Personnel Cost
The table below is a representation of the human resources within the Trust during this reporting period.
Table 6: Personnel cost
The costs below include two seconded staff to the Trust.
Programme

Total expenditure
(R’000)

All programmes

48 299

No. of employees1

(R’000)

Personnel
expenditure as % of
total expenditure1

19 051

39%

39

Personnel
expenditure

Average personnel
cost per employee2
(R’000)
488

1

Includes seconded staff

2

Total expenditure for programme divided by personnel expenditure.

Employment and Vacancies
The approved human resource complement of the Trust during this reporting period was set to 48. At the end of this reporting period, the Trust had 39 full time employees, 2 seconded
staff and 9 vacancies as per the table below.
Table 7 Employment and vacancies per programme
Unit
Communication

2014/2015

2015/2016

2015/2016

2015/2016

No of employees

Approved posts

No of employees

Vacancies

2

Governance and Administration

% of vacancies

1

1

0

0

10

10

0

0
16

Monitoring and Evaluation

0

12

10

2

NSP Implementation

11

8

6

2

25

5

4

1

20

2

7

4

3

42

CEO’s Office

2

3

2

1

33

Campaigns

2

2

2

0

0

19

48

39

9

18

Inter-Governmental and Sector Support
Donor Coordination

Total
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Equity (Equity targets will be set in the next reporting period)
The tables below illustrate the human resource equity of the Trust’s Secretariat. The Trust does not have to comply with EEA based on the size of the Secretariat. However, we still need
the Trust to develop and identify equity targets. During the next financial year, this will be a priority for the human resource department.
Table 8: Equity

African

Coloured

Indian

White

Level
Top management

1

Senior management

1

Professional qualified

3

0

Skilled

3

13
4

Unskilled

1
7

1

1

3

Semi-skilled
Total

1

22

1
1

1

1

2

1
1

1

3

0

1

4

Disabled Staff
Table 9 Disabled staff
The trust does not currently have any disabled staff

South African National AIDS Council Trust
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Trustees’ Responsibilities and Approval
The trustees are required in terms of the Trust Deed
to maintain adequate accounting records and are
responsible for the content and integrity of the financial
statements and related financial information included
in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the
financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of
the SANAC Trust as at the end of the financial year and
the results of its operations and cash flows for the period
then ended, in conformity with International Financial
Reporting Standards. The external auditors are engaged
to express an independent opinion on the financial
statements.
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and are based
upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied
and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements
and estimates.
The trustees acknowledge that they are ultimately
responsible for the system of internal financial control
established by the trust and place considerable
importance on maintaining a strong control environment.
To enable the trustees to meet these responsibilities,
the board sets standards for internal control aimed
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at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective
manner. The standards include the proper delegation
of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework,
effective accounting procedures and adequate
segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk.
These controls are monitored throughout the trust and
all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical
standards in ensuring the trust’s business is conducted in
a manner that, in all reasonable circumstances, is above
reproach. The focus of risk management in the trust is on
identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known
forms of risk across the trust. While operating risk cannot
be fully eliminated, the trust endeavours to minimise it
by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls,
systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed
within predetermined procedures and constraints.
The trustees are of the opinion, based on the information
and explanations given by management, that the system
of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the
financial records may be relied on for the preparation of
the financial statements. However, any system of internal
financial control can provide only reasonable, and not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
loss.
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The trustees have reviewed the trust’s cash flow forecast
for the year to 31 March 2017 and, in light of this review
and the current financial position, they are satisfied that
the trust has access to adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future.
The external auditors are responsible for independently
auditing and reporting on the trust’s financial statements.
The financial statements have been examined by the
trust’s external auditors and their report is presented on
page 54.
The financial statements set out on pages 55 to 77, which
have been prepared on the going concern basis, were
approved by the board on 11 August 2016 and were signed
on their behalf by:

Dr G Ramokgopa
Chairperson: Board of Trustees

South African National AIDS Council Trust
(Registration number IT 6481/02)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent Auditor’s Report to the trustees of the
South African National AIDS Council Trust
We have audited the financial statements of South African
National AIDS Council Trust, as set out on pages 55 to 77,
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31
March 2016, and the statement of other comprehensive
income, statement of changes in reserves and statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes,
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.
Trustees’ Responsibility of the Financial Statements
The trust’s trustees are responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and for such internal control as the trustees
determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these

financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the company`s preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the company`s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of SANAC Trust
as at 31 March 2016, and the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in reserves and statement
of cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards.

ARC Chartered Accountants and Auditors
Incorporated
Registered Chartered Accountants and Auditors
(S.A.)
Per: F. van Heerden CA(SA)/RA
Associate
Pretoria
11 August 2016
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2016
Note(s)

2016

2015

3

1 376 039

549 961

Receivables

5

5 473 250

1 445 776

Other financial assets

4

4 438 791

-

Cash and cash equivalents

6

14 989 659

37 438 567

24 901 700

38 884 343

26 277 739

39 434 304

22 807 222

25 822 368

658 743

-

Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Current Assets

Total Assets
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Reserves
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Operating lease liability
Current Liabilities
Provisions

7

576 659

383 767

Payables

8

1 993 441

6 921 656

117 674

-

Operating lease liability
Deferred income
Total Liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities
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9

124 000

6 306 513

2 811 774

13 611 936

3 470 517

13 611 936

26 277 739

39 434 304
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
Note(s)
Income

10

Project expenses
Operating deficit

2016

2015

43 834 777

29 511 449

(48 299 401)

(35 483 985)

(4 464 624)

(5 972 536)

Investment revenue

11

1 467 399

1 732 898

Fair value adjustments

12

(17 228)

-

Finance costs

13

(693)

(1 104)

(3 015 146)

(4 240 742)

-

-

(3 015 146)

(4 240 742)

Reserves

Total reserves

Reserves at 01 April 2014

30 063 110

30 063 110

Deficit for the year

(4 240 742)

(4 240 742)

-

-

Deficit for the year

(4 240 742)

(4 240 742)

Reserves at 01 April 2015

25 822 368

25 822 368

(3 015 146)

(3 015 146)

Deficit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year

Statement of Changes in Reserves

Other comprehensive income

Deficit for the year
Other comprehensive income

-

-

Deficit for the year

(3 015 146)

(3 015 146)

Reserves at 31 March 2016

22 807 222

22 807 222

South African National AIDS Council Trust
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Statement of Cash Flows
Note(s)

2016

2015

(18 051 285)

1 892 221

1 467 399

1 732 898

(693)

(1 104)

(16 584 579)

3 624 015

(1 408 310)

(157 316)

(4 456 019)

-

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash used in operations

15

Interest income
Finance costs
Net cash from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

3

Purchase of financial assets
Net cash from investing activities

(5 864 329)

(157 316)

Total cash movement for the year

(22 448 908)

3 466 699

37 438 567

33 971 868

14 989 659

37 438 567

Cash at the beginning of the year
Total cash at end of the year
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Accounting Policies
1. Presentation of financial statements
The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards. The financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, and incorporate the principal
accounting policies set out below. They are presented in
South African Rands.
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous
period.
1.1 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets which
the trust holds for its own use and which are expected to
be used for more than one year.
An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as
an asset when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the company, and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at
cost. Cost includes all of the expenditure which is directly
attributable to the acquisition or construction of the
asset, including the capitalisation of borrowing costs on
qualifying assets and adjustments in respect of hedge
accounting, where appropriate.
Expenditure incurred subsequently for major services,
additions to or replacements of parts of property, plant
and equipment are capitalised if it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the expenditure

will flow to the company and the cost can be measured
reliably. Day to day servicing costs are included in profit
or loss in the year in which they are incurred.
Property, plant and equipment is subsequently stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.
Depreciation of an asset commences when the asset is
ready for use as intended by management. Depreciation
is charged to write off the asset’s carrying amount over
its estimated useful life to its estimated residual value,
using a method that best reflects the pattern in which the
asset’s economic benefits are consumed by the trust.
Leased assets are depreciated in a consistent manner
over the shorter of their expected useful lives and the
lease term. Depreciation is not charged to an asset if
its estimated residual value exceeds or is equal to its
carrying amount. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the
earlier of the date that the asset is classified as held for
sale or derecognised.
The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment
have been assessed as follows:
Item

Depreciation
method

Average useful
life

Office equipment

Straight line

5

IT equipment

Straight line

3

Leasehold
improvements

Straight line

Over the
remaining lease
period
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The residual value, useful life and depreciation method
of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting
year. If the expectations differ from previous estimates,
the change is accounted for prospectively as a change in
accounting estimate.
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment
with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of
the item is depreciated separately.
The depreciation charge for each year is recognised in
profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount
of another asset.
Impairment tests are performed on property, plant and
equipment when there is an indicator that they may
be impaired. When the carrying amount of an item of
property, plant and equipment is assessed to be higher
than the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss to bring
the carrying amount in line with the recoverable amount.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its continued use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property,
plant and equipment is included in profit or loss when the
item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the
derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.
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1.2 Financial instruments

Classification

For financial instruments which are not at fair value
through surplus or deficit, transaction costs are included
in the initial measurement of the instrument.

The trust classifies financial assets and financial liabilities
into the following categories:

Transaction costs on financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss.

• Financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit

Subsequent measurement

• Loans and receivables
• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial instruments were obtained / incurred and takes
place at initial recognition. Classification is re-assessed
on an annual basis, except for derivatives and financial
assets designated as at fair value through surplus or
deficit, which shall not be classified out of the fair value
through surplus or deficit category.

Financial instruments at fair value through surplus or
deficit are subsequently measured at fair value, with
gains and losses arising from changes in fair value being
included in surplus or deficit for the period.
Net gains or losses on the financial instruments at fair
value through surplus or deficit exclude dividends and
interest.

Initial recognition and measurement

Dividend income is recognised in surplus or deficit as part
of other income when the trust’s right to receive payment
is established.

Financial instruments are recognised initially when the
trust becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less
accumulated impairment losses.

The trust classifies financial instruments, or their
component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset,
a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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The fair values of quoted investments are based on
current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not
active (and for unlisted securities), the trust establishes
fair value by using valuation techniques. These include
the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference
to other instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models
making maximum use of market inputs and relying as
little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

Impairment of financial assets
At each reporting date the trust assesses all financial
assets, other than those at fair value through surplus or
deficit, to determine whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of financial assets has been
impaired.
For amounts due to the trust, significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy and default of payments are all
considered indicators of impairment.
Impairment losses are recognised in surplus or deficit.

Derecognition
Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value,
except for equity investments for which a fair value is
not determinable, which are measured at cost and are
classified as available-for-sale financial assets.

Fair value determination

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the trust has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
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Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in
the financial asset’s recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, subject to the restriction that the
carrying amount of the financial asset at the date that the
impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the carrying
amount would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in surplus
or deficit.
Where financial assets are impaired through use of an
allowance account, the amount of the loss is recognised
in surplus or deficit within operating expenses. When
such assets are written off, the write off is made against
the relevant allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against
operating expenses.

Financial instruments designated as at fair value
through profit or loss
These include financial assets held for trading and
financial assets designated upon initial recognition after
transaction date. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling to
realise a return

Receivables
Accounts receivable are measured at initial recognition
at cost, and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default
or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue)
are considered indicators that the account receivable is
impaired. The allowance recognised is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss
is recognised in profit or loss within operating expenses.
When an account receivable is uncollectable, it is written
off against the allowance account for accounts receivable.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against operating expenses in profit or loss.

lease asset. This liability is not discounted.
Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are
incurred.
Lease incentives under operating leases are recognised
as a liability and amortised on a straight-line basis over
the life of the lease term.

Payables
1.4 Impairment of assets
Trade payables are initially measured at cost, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

The trust assesses at each end of the reporting period
whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the trust estimates
the recoverable amount of the asset.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the
recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset.
If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cashgenerating unit to which the asset belongs is determined.

1.3 Leases

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use.

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it
does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is an
impairment loss.

Operating leases – lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference
between the amounts recognised as an expense and the
contractual payments are recognised as an operating

South African National AIDS Council Trust

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any
accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. Any impairment loss of a
revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.
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An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is
any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior
periods for assets other than goodwill may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amounts of those assets are estimated.

services that increase their entitlement or, in the case of
non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.
1.7 Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognised when:

The increased carrying amount of an asset other than
goodwill attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost
less accumulated depreciation or amortisation other
than goodwill is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued asset is
treated as a revaluation increase.
1.5 Reserves
Reserves are comprised of the initial donation in the trust
after surplus or deficit for each financial year.
1.6 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits
The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable
within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as
paid vacation leave and sick leave), are recognised in
the period in which the service is rendered and are not
discounted.

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that:
• t he trust will comply with the conditions attaching to
them; and

• t he trust has a present obligation as a result of a past
event;

• the grants will be received.

• it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation; and

Government grants are recognised as income over the
periods necessary to match them with the related costs
that they are intended to compensate.

• a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.
The amount of a provision is the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the
obligation.
Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle
a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, the reimbursement shall be recognised when,
and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement
will be received if the entity settles the obligation. The
reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset.
The amount recognised for the reimbursement shall not
exceed the amount of the provision.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present
obligation under the contract shall be recognised and
measured as a provision.

The expected cost of compensated absences is
recognised as an expense as the employees render
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1.8 Government grants
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A government grant that becomes receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the entity with no future related costs is recognised as
income of the period in which it becomes receivable.
Government grants related to assets, including nonmonetary grants at fair value, are presented in the
statement of financial position by setting up the grant as
deferred income or by deducting the grant in arriving at
the carrying amount of the asset.
Grants related to income are presented as a credit in the
profit or loss.
In the event of default the repayment of a grant related to
income is applied first against any un-amortised deferred
credit set up in respect of the grant. To the extent that the
repayment exceeds any such deferred credit, or where
no deferred credit exists, the repayment is recognised
immediately as an expense.
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Repayment of a grant related to an asset is recorded by
increasing the carrying amount of the asset or reducing
the deferred income balance by the amount repayable.
The cumulative additional depreciation that would have
been recognised to date as an expense in the absence of
the grant is recognised immediately as an expense.
1.9 Income
Income comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable from grants, donations and
fundraising activities.
Income is recognised as follows:

1.10 Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions
A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial
recognition in Rands, by applying to the foreign currency
amount the spot exchange rate between the functional
currency and the foreign currency at the date of the
transaction.
At the end of the reporting period:
• f oreign currency monetary items are translated using
the closing rate;

• n
 on-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction;
and
• n
 on-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Cash flows arising from transactions in a foreign currency
are recorded in Rands by applying to the foreign currency
amount the exchange rate between the Rand and the
foreign currency at the date of the cash flow.

Non-designated funds (Grants)
Grants are accounted for on a cash received basis.

Designated programme funds (Grants)
Designated programme funds received are deferred and
recognised in the statement of Other comprehensive
income when utilised. Designated funds are those funds
the use of which is restricted by the donor for specified
projects.

Donations in kind (Designated and non-designated)
Donations in kind (asset or service) are recognised at fair
value on the date of receipt.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
2. New Standards and Interpretations
2.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year
In the current year, the trust has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current financial year and that are relevant to its operations:
Standard/ Interpretation

Effective date:
Years beginning on or after

Expected impact

Amendment to IAS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment: Annual improvements project

01 July 2014

The impact of the amendment is not material.

Amendment to IAS 24: Related Party Disclosures: Annual improvements project

01 July 2014

The impact of the amendment is not material.

Amendment to IFRS 13: Fair Value Measurement: Annual improvements project

01 July 2014

The impact of the amendment is not material.

2.2 Standards and interpretations not yet effective
The trust has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for the trust’s accounting periods beginning on or after
01 April 2016 or later periods:
Standard/ Interpretation

Effective date:
Years beginning on or after

Expected impact

IFRS 16: Leases

01 July 2019

The impact of the amendment is not material.

IFRS 9: Financial Instruments

01 July 2018

The impact of the amendment is not material.

IAS 7: Statement of Cash Flows

01 July 2017

The impact of the amendment is not material.

IAS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements

01 July 2016

The impact of the amendment is not material.

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

01 July 2016

The impact of the amendment is not material.

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

01 July 2016

The impact of the amendment is not material.

63

South African National AIDS Council Trust

South African National AIDS Council Trust
(Registration number IT 6481/02)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

3. Property, plant and equipment
2016

2015

Cost or revaluation

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying value

Cost or revaluation

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying value

Office equipment

926 372

(177 795)

748 577

718 066

(315 186)

402 880

IT equipment

713 290

(576 135)

137 155

615 151

(468 070)

147 081

Leasehold improvements
Total

588 368

(98 061)

490 307

-

-

-

2 228 030

(851 991)

1 376 039

1 333 217

(783 256)

549 961

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2016
2016

2015

Opening balance

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

Total

402 880

654 113

(152 281)

(156 135)

748 577

147 081

165 829

(56 932)

(118 823)

137 155

-

588 368

-

(98 061)

490 307

549 961

1 408 310

(209 213)

(373 019)

1 376 039

Opening balance

Additions

Depreciation

Total

Office equipment

370 188

139 315

(106 623)

402 880

IT equipment

308 280

18 001

(179 200)

147 081

678 468

157 316

(285 823)

549 961

Office equipment
IT equipment
Leasehold improvements

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2015

South African National AIDS Council Trust

64

South African National AIDS Council Trust
(Registration number IT 6481/02)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

4. Other financial assets
At fair value through profit or loss

Unit trusts

2016

2015

4 438 791

-

Investment in unit trusts with Momentum Collective Investments Limited
Current assets
Designated as at fair value through profit or loss

4 438 791

5. Receivables
Accounts receivable

44 624

393 359

VAT

1 362 652

894 493

Donations receivable

3 330 414

-

728 115

123 081

7 445

34 843

5 473 250

1 445 776

Deposits held
Accrued interest

Fair value of accounts receivable
Receivables are all interest free, fair value is considered to be equal to carrying value and considered to be current due to short term nature.The impact of discounting is not considered
material.
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6. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
2016

2015

1 119

1 891

Bank balances

3 734 433

713 087

Short-term deposits

11 254 107

36 723 589

14 989 659

37 438 567

Cash on hand

Funds are kept on short term deposit to earn interest as per investment policy. Funds are withdrawn as needed to meet obligations. Interest earned on investments at 7.77% pa (2015:
7.22% pa).

7. Provisions
Reconciliation of provisions - 2016

Provision for leave pay

Opening balance

Additions

Utilised during the year

Total

383 767

129 342

63 550

576 659

Opening balance

Additions

Utilised during the year

Total

19 243

344 586

19 938

383 767

Reconciliation of provisions - 2015

Provision for leave pay
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8. Payables
2016
Accounts payable
Accruals

2015

537 141

359 434

1 456 300

6 562 222

1 993 441

6 921 656

Project allocation of accruals
NSP

10 374

570 433

Government & Civil Society

30 891

809 960

Donor Coordination

11 009

1 024 344

216 917

352 792

DFID

-

1 394 488

CDC

478 432

651 474

GIZ

299 963

1 589 800

Governance and Administration

Communication

408 714

146 279

1 456 300

6 562 222

Fair value of accounts payable
Payables are all interest free, the fair value is considered to be equal to the carrying amount and are considered to be current due to their short-term nature.
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9. Deferred income
2016
GIZ
DFID

2015

124 000

758 525

-

5 547 988

124 000

6 306 513

Deferred income consists of designated programme funds (Grants). Designated programme funds received are deferred and recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when
utilised. Designated funds are those funds the use of which is restricted by the donor for specified projects

10. Income
Non-designated grants
GIZ

309 273

244 716

20 223 249

15 561 216

20 532 522

15 805 932

DFID

5 547 988

2 751 128

CDC

15 054 247

3 543 241

2 013 767

3 593 555

22 616 002

9 887 924

-

1 540 000

686 254

1 876 272

Government grants
Designated grants

GIZ
Donations in kind
GIZ - Seconded staff
SHIPP - Seconded staff
FHI - Seconded staff

-

401 321

686 254

3 817 593

23 611 528

13 950 233

Government grants

20 223 249

15 561 216

Total

43 834 777

29 511 449

Donations
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11. Investment revenue

Interest revenue Bank

2016

2015

1 467 399

1 732 898

(17 228)

-

693

1 104

254 032

152 642

12. Fair value adjustments
Other financial assets

13. Finance costs
Penalties

14. Auditors’ remuneration
Fees
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15. Cash used in operations
2016

2015

(3 015 146)

(4 240 742)

Depreciation and amortisation

373 019

285 823

Disposal of property, plant and
equipment

209 213

-

(1 467 399)

(1 732 898)

Surplus/(Deficit)
Adjustments for:

Interest received
Finance costs

693

1 104

17 228

-

Movements in operating lease assets and accruals

776 417

-

Movements in provisions

192 892

219 415

Fair value adjustments

Changes in working capital:
Receivables

(4 027 474)

(821 178)

Payables

(4 928 215)

1 874 184

Deferred income

(6 182 513)

6 306 513

(18 051 285)

1 892 221

2 197 486

1 860 032

16. Commitments
Operating leases – as lessee (expense)
Minimum lease payments due
• within one year
•  in second to fifth year inclusive

South African National AIDS Council Trust

6 837 888

9 035 374

9 035 374

10 895 406
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16. Commitments -continued
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the trust for its office property. The lease is negotiated for a term of five years and rentals are fixed for five years. No contingent
rent is payable. Another operating lease represents the lease payments payable by the trust for its printers. The lease is negotiated on a term of 3 years and rentals are fixed for 3 years.
No contingent rent is payable.
Commitments relating to programs
Commitments consists of contracts entered into before year end that do not lead to a constructive or legal obligation at year end.Funding for these commitments have been confirmed.

Commitments

2016

2015

2 733 068

13 243 126

2 684 020

2 050 942

17. Related parties
Relationships

Members of key management
Dr F Abdullah
A Uys

Compensation to key management
Short-term employee benefits

18. Trustees remuneration
The Trust Deed provides that the trustees shall not be remunerated for any professional services provided to the trust. It is comfirmed that no remuneration has been paid to the trustees
listed in the Report of the Board of Trustees in the reporting period.
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19. Categories of financial instruments
Financial assets at fair
value through profit or
loss

Debt instruments at
amortised cost

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost

Equity and non
financial assets and
liabilities

Total

3

-

-

-

1 376 039

1 376 039

Other financial assets

4

4 438 791

-

-

-

4 438 791

Receivables

5

-

4 110 598

-

1 362 652

5 473 250

Cash and cash equivalents

6

Notes

Categories of financial instruments - 2016
Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Current Assets

-

14 989 659

-

-

14 989 659

4 438 791

19 100 257

-

1 362 652

24 901 700

4 438 791

19 100 257

-

2 738 691

26 277 739

Reserves

-

-

-

22 807 222

22 807 222

Total Equity

-

-

-

22 807 222

22 807 222

-

-

-

658 743

658 743

Total Assets
Equity and Liabilities
Equity

Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Operating lease liability
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19. Categories of financial instruments -continued
Notes

Financial assets at fair
value through profit or
loss

Debt instruments at
amortised cost

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost

Equity and non
financial assets and
liabilities

Total

-

-

-

117 674

117 674

-

-

1 993 442

-

1 993 442

Current Liabilities
Operating lease liability
Payables

8

Deferred income

9

-

-

-

124 000

124 000

Provisions

7

-

-

-

576 659

576 659

-

-

1 993 442

818 333

2 811 775

Total Liabilities

-

-

1 993 442

1 477 076

3 470 518

Total Equity and Liabilities

-

-

1 993 442

24 284 298

26 277 740

3

-

-

-

549 961

549 961

Receivables

5

-

551 283

-

894 493

1 445 776

Cash and cash equivalents

6

-

37 438 567

-

-

37 438 567

-

37 989 850

-

894 493

38 884 343

-

37 989 850

-

1 444 454

39 434 304

Categories of financial instruments - 2015
Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Current Assets

Total Assets
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19. Categories of financial instruments -continued
Notes

Financial assets at fair
value through profit or
loss

Debt instruments at
amortised cost

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost

Equity and non
financial assets and
liabilities

Total

-

-

-

25 822 368

25 822 368

-

-

-

25 822 368

25 822 368

Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Reserves

-

Total Equity
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Payables

8

-

-

6 921 656

-

6 921 656

Deferred income

9

-

-

-

6 306 513

6 306 513

Provisions

7

-

-

-

383 767

383 767

-

-

6 921 656

6 690 280

13 611 936

Total Liabilities

-

-

6 921 656

6 690 280

13 611 936

Total Equity and Liabilities

-

-

6 921 656

32 512 648

39 434 304

20. Risk management
Financial risk management
The trust’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The trust’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets, exchange rate, interest rate and political climate and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the trust’s financial performance. Risk management is carried out by the finance department under policies approved by the board. The board provides written principles for
overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk and investment of excess liquidity.The audit and risk committee monitors compliance
to risk management policies and evaluates the risk environment of the trust.
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Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Trust will not be able to meet its financial obligations as the fall due.The trust’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments.
The trust manages liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and funding avaliable.
The table below analyses the trust’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the statement of financial position to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not
significant.
At 31 March 2016

Less than 1 year

Payables

(1 993 442)

At 31 March 2015

Less than 1 year

Payables

(6 921 656)

Interest rate risk
The trust’s income and operating cash flows are linked to the market interest rates. The trust invest surplus cash on call and investment accounts. Its exposure to interest rate risk is
however limited by virtue of the fixed rate that surplus cash is invested at.
As of 31 March 2016, the majority of cash and cash equivalents comprised of interest bearing assets. Based on the balances as of 31 March 2016, a 100 basis points increase would
decrease the deficit by approximately R189,000 (2015: R 240,000).
Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that the counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Trust.
Credit risk consists mainly of cash and cash equivalents, receivables and other financial assets. The trust only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits
exposure to any one counter-party.
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Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:
2016

2015

14 988 540

37 436 676

411 598

551 283

4 438 791

-

Financial instrument
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Other financial assets
Foreign exchange risk
The trust is exposed to currency risk by virtue of having long term contracts with foreign donors, which is the risk that arises as a result of changes in exchange rates. The exposure to
currency risk is limited by virtue of the limited transactions with these donors. Transaction dates and settlement dates are kept close together.

21. Fair value information
Fair value hierarchy
The levels are defined as follows:
Level 1: Quoted unadjusted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the trust can access at measurement date.
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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Levels of fair value measurements
Level 2
Recurring fair value measurements
Notes

2016

2015

Unit trusts

4 438 791

-

Total

4 438 791

-

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss

4

Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 fair values
Unit-linked investments relates to units held at collective investment schemes and are priced monthly. The prices are obtained from the collective investment scheme management
companies for the particular scheme and are based on quoted prices that are publicly available.

22. Going concern
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations
and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

23. Events after the reporting period
There were no events after the reporting period that affect the Financial Statements.

24. Taxation
SANAC Trust has been granted PBO status under section 30(3) of the Income Tax Act No 58 of 1962. The registration has been granted retrospectively from 12 September 2002. SANAC
Trust is therefore exempt form income tax under section 10(1)(cN) of the Income Tax Act.
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